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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu, I

          5  have the privilege of Chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today's agenda contains four pieces

          7  of legislation which we will consider.  The first

          8  piece of legislation is Intro. No. 60.  This is a

          9  safety initiative for both pedestrians and

         10  motorists.  The bill seeks to prohibit parking by

         11  vehicles in excess of certain heights from parking

         12  on city street corners.  The rational is to open up

         13  the sight lines for both pedestrians trying to cross

         14  the street and motorists attempting to turn onto

         15  streets.

         16                 The fact that the physical size of

         17  motor vehicles has continued to grow each year, in

         18  particular sport utility vehicles, has lead to

         19  decreased visibility at intersections that which

         20  such vehicles are parked.

         21                 Pedestrians and motorists have

         22  trouble seeing each other because of the presence of

         23  these tall vehicles and Intro. No. 60 attempts to

         24  address this problem and increase public safety.

         25                 The next two items on today's agenda
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          2  are Into. No. 266 and Intro. No. 269, which I will

          3  discuss together because of their related subject

          4  matter.

          5                 Into. No. 226 relates to plating and

          6  decking placed on street openings during

          7  construction projects and excavations.

          8                 Intro. No. 269 relates to reducing

          9  the noise caused by protective coverings placed over

         10  streets during construction and excavation projects.

         11                 As you can tell, these bills strive

         12  to achieve similar goals, improve safety and quality

         13  of life at the sites of street openings by improving

         14  the way plating and decking, also known as metal

         15  plates or protective coverings, are placed at street

         16  openings when work is not being actively done.

         17                 These coverings serve to prevent

         18  individuals and vehicles from falling into these

         19  openings in the streets that have been made during

         20  such repair projects.

         21                 However, a frequent complaint has

         22  been that these coverings are not adequately and not

         23  routinely affixed properly, thereby resulting in a

         24  great deal of rattling, instability, and extreme

         25  noise when these coverings are driven upon by
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          2  vehicles.

          3                 These two bills seek to improve the

          4  situation by prescribing better methods for

          5  installing these coverings.

          6                 The final bill we are considering

          7  today is Intro. No. 586 which attempts to promote

          8  and enhance pedestrian safety on designated streets

          9  in Downtown Flushing.

         10                 The streets and sidewalks of Downtown

         11  Flushing are unique to the City of New York in that

         12  they are overwhelmingly congested.  Downtown

         13  Flushing is packed day after day because of its

         14  identity as both a shopping hub and a transportation

         15  hub in the City of New York.

         16                 This has lead to an enormous amount

         17  of sidewalk activity ranging from general pedestrian

         18  use to commercial endeavors that are sometimes legal

         19  and sometimes not.  The sidewalks are meant for

         20  pedestrian, for safe pedestrian passage.

         21                 While it may be appropriate and

         22  sometimes even desirable to permit some sidewalk

         23  space to be used by businesses and individuals to

         24  sell their merchandise, the sheer volume of

         25  pedestrian traffic on these particular streets in
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          2  Downtown Flushing makes the continuation of this on

          3  sidewalk business unsafe.

          4                 The situation has gotten so bad that

          5  is has become commonplace for pedestrians to have to

          6  navigate a veritable obstacle coarse just to get to

          7  where they are trying to go.  This includes having

          8  to step out into the roadway sometimes in oncoming

          9  traffic simply to get by.  It has become a situation

         10  that is extremely dangerous for pedestrians and at

         11  this point Intro. No. 586 simply seeks to restore

         12  sidewalks back for pedestrian use by the public.

         13                 At this time I would like to welcome

         14  the representatives of the Department of

         15  Transportation for their comments on these bills,

         16  and I am pleased to welcome David Woloch, Deputy

         17  Commissioner for External Affairs at the New York

         18  City Department of Transportation.

         19                 And while the DOT is preparing to

         20  testify, if there is anybody that wishes to speak on

         21  these matters on our agenda today, please fill out

         22  one of these slips and submit it to the

         23  Sergeant-at-Arms.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

         25  Chairman, before the gentleman speaks, I would say
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          2  that I think you've identified a very important

          3  problem here with this legislation and would like to

          4  just comment that this problem that you have

          5  identified and I heard your statement, exists not

          6  only in Flushing but in other parts of the City, and

          7  we have had great difficulty in getting a special

          8  regulation passed to eliminate this kind of sidewalk

          9  selling in my district, and I would urge those who

         10  speak on this today, not only to talk about

         11  Flushing, but to also talk about the general issue

         12  and how this problem can be handled.  And I would

         13  ask you, Mr. Chairman, to consider perhaps even

         14  amending your bill to include other areas of the

         15  City or to have some general rules.  Because this is

         16  a major problem, not only in Flushing, but

         17  elsewhere.  And I would like to hear testimony on

         18  that generally, and also would like to urge you and

         19  the Committee Staff to look into broadening the

         20  bill.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         22  Member Koppell. Those are comments that we will

         23  certainly take into careful consideration.

         24                 And in addition to Council Member

         25  Oliver Koppell who just spoke, a member from the
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          2  Bronx, we are also joined in this hearing by Council

          3  Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, and

          4  Councilwoman Helen Sears from Queens.

          5                 Thank you very much, Deputy

          6  Commissioner, and please proceed.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

          8  morning, Chairman Liu, and members of the Committee

          9  on Transportation.  My name is David Woloch and I am

         10  the Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at the

         11  New York City Department of Transportation.

         12                 I am joined by Vincent Manescelko,

         13  who is the Director of DOT's Highway Quality

         14  Assurance Division.

         15                 I am pleased to be here this morning

         16  to discuss the four items on today's agenda, Intros.

         17  226 and 269, relating to protective coverings placed

         18  over streets, Intro. 60 prohibiting the parking of

         19  any motor vehicle, other than passenger vehicles,

         20  within 15 feet of any street corner, and Intro. 586

         21  forbidding sidewalk obstructions on designated

         22  portions of streets in downtown Flushing.  I will

         23  address each of these bills in turn.

         24                 Intro. 226 would require the

         25  installation of plating and decking over street
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          2  openings, require that they be securely placed to

          3  create a minimum amount of noise, require the

          4  permittee to certify that the plating and decking

          5  was properly installed, and institutes penalties for

          6  non-compliance.

          7                 The second plating bill on today's

          8  agenda, Intro. 269, refers to street protection that

          9  is placed underneath construction equipment to

         10  protect the street.  It does not, as drafted, refer

         11  to the plating that is placed over street openings,

         12  which we believe was the issue that the sponsor

         13  intended to address.  Therefore, my comments will

         14  focus solely on Intro. 226 and the issue of metal

         15  plating over street openings.

         16                 As the agency charged with issuing

         17  permits and overseeing the construction activity on

         18  the City's streets and sidewalks, ensuring public

         19  safety while the necessary work is undertaken is the

         20  DOT's primary concern.

         21                 Our second concern is to minimize any

         22  negative impacts that may be experienced in the

         23  effected area for residents and businesses, such as

         24  traffic congestion and the noise created by

         25  motorists driving over unsecured, poorly installed,
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          2  shifted or defective metal plates. Existing DOT

          3  Highway Rules ensure that these primary concerns are

          4  addressed by bestowing upon the permittee the

          5  responsibility for making the area safe and secure,

          6  and granting DOT enforcement capabilities to ensure

          7  that these rules are followed.

          8                 To this end, DOT's Highway Rules,

          9  Section 2-11 already require the securing and

         10  ramping of plating and decking, and require the

         11  permittee to install and fasten plating that is safe

         12  and adequate to carry the load of vehicles, and

         13  require that the size of the plating be large enough

         14  to span the opening and be sufficiently ramped.

         15                 Our rules also go a step further by

         16  requiring that the plating and decking have a

         17  skid-resistance surface to give bicyclists and

         18  pedestrians additional traction as they cross over

         19  them.

         20                 The rules also require that the

         21  permittee post signs in the winter months to warn

         22  snow plow operators that a metal plate lies ahead.

         23  This reduces the likelihood that plates are

         24  inadvertently moved by a snow plow in times of bad

         25  weather.
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          2                 A violation of our rules also imposes

          3  a stricter penalty for a first violation in

          4  comparison to the proposed legislation.  While the

          5  bills calls for a $250 initial fine, DOT imposes a

          6  $400 fine for each failure to pin and ramp plates,

          7  and a $1,000 fine for each failure to have a

          8  skid-resistant surface.

          9                 While the proposed legislation does

         10  incorporate a repeat offender clause, it is

         11  problematic from an adjudication standpoint.  Before

         12  a violation could be issued in an amount double the

         13  previous violation, the first violation would first

         14  need to be adjudicated.  However, the adjudication

         15  process at the Environmental Control Board, ECB,

         16  takes approximately 60 to 90 days per violation.

         17  Now, that is too long of a period of time to way

         18  before being able to issue another violation, and in

         19  many cases the street work will have already been

         20  completed and the contractor will have moved on.

         21                 Under current practice, we continue

         22  to issue violation to the permittee each day that

         23  the situation is not rectified.  But the goal of the

         24  bills, creating a more aggressive enforcement tool,

         25  is one that we share with the Council.
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          2                 Accordingly, we are contemplating

          3  increasing the amount of the fines we impose.

          4                 In summary, while we agree with the

          5  goals of this bill, we believe that our current

          6  rules already address the safety and quality of life

          7  concerns caused by unsecured, poorly installed,

          8  shifted or defective metal plates.

          9                 The third bill on today's agenda,

         10  Intro. 60, would prohibit all motor vehicles, other

         11  than passenger cares less than five feet in height,

         12  from parking within 15 feet of any street corner.

         13                 Again, while the intent of this bill

         14  of this bill is also admirable, DOT has strong

         15  reservations about it from safety and enforcement

         16  perspectives.

         17                 DOT already has a mechanism in place

         18  to enhance safety at locations where parking too

         19  close to an intersection creates problems.  At these

         20  locations we "daylight" the intersection by

         21  installing appropriate "No Standing" or "No Parking"

         22  signs.  Decisions to daylight are made on a

         23  case-by-case basis after a detailed engineering

         24  study of the intersection, which examines such

         25  factors as line of sight, traffic controls and
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          2  traffic volumes.

          3                 When a location is daylighted, the

          4  parking prohibition is put in place for all

          5  vehicles, not just those less that five feet in

          6  height.  It is our belief and the belief of our

          7  engineers, that if a location is hazardous enough to

          8  require day lighting, the restriction should be put

          9  in place for all vehicles.

         10                 In addition, the presumption of the

         11  bill that parking oversized vehicles at all

         12  intersections impairs safety is incorrect.  Where

         13  one-way streets intersect, motorists only need to

         14  have unimpaired site distances in one direction, the

         15  direction from which the vehicles are coming.

         16                 In addition, at signalized

         17  intersections where the right-of-way is determined

         18  by the signal, vehicles parked close to the

         19  intersection do not interfere with a motorist's

         20  ability to proceed safely.

         21                 I would also like to point out that

         22  all vehicles are already prohibited from parking in

         23  either a marked or unmarked crosswalk.

         24                 At these types of locations where

         25  safety is not impaired, this legislation would
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          2  merely limit on-street parking opportunities for

          3  area residents, many of whom already have a

          4  difficult time finding appropriate parking.  And we

          5  all know how valuable parking spaces are to

          6  communities throughout the City.

          7                 Lastly, the provision of this bill

          8  that only allows passenger vehicles less than five

          9  feet to park within 15 feet of any street corner

         10  would be extremely difficult to enforce.  The

         11  five-foot height restriction would require Police

         12  Officers to estimate or individually measure each

         13  parked vehicle to determine whether or not it was in

         14  violation of this height restriction.

         15                 This would undoubtedly lead to many

         16  appeals by vehicle owners whose vehicles may have

         17  been erroneously measured.

         18                 In sum, DOT is not supportive of this

         19  bill and we believe that decisions to daylight

         20  should continue to be made on a case-by-case basis

         21  that takes into account the unique characteristics

         22  of each individual intersection.

         23                 We are certainly happy to examine any

         24  locations that the Council believes may be

         25  appropriate for daylighting.  We do believe
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          2  daylighting is a good safety tool and we do try to

          3  use it throughout the City whereever possible.

          4                 The last bill on today's agenda,

          5  Intro. 586, would prohibit the placement of any

          6  obstructions on certain designated sections of Main

          7  Street, Roosevelt Avenue and Casina Boulevard in

          8  downtown Flushing.  Obstructions or stands located

          9  outside of businesses that may extend up to three

         10  feet into the sidewalk, and which must sell items

         11  that are also sold inside the particular business.

         12                 We certainly appreciate the high

         13  level of pedestrian activity on downtown Flushing

         14  sidewalks, yet we recognize that the balancing of

         15  pedestrian mobility and commerce is not to be

         16  treated lightly.

         17                 Working with our sister agencies,

         18  including Department of Small Business Services and

         19  Department Consumer Affairs, we would need to learn

         20  more about the benefit to pedestrian mobility and

         21  the impact on businesses.

         22                 Also, as Councilman Koppell noted, it

         23  is important the downtown Flushing sidewalks not be

         24  looked at in a vacuum.  This balancing act should be

         25  approached no differently than any other
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          2  neighborhood in the City.

          3                 Accordingly, we would need more time

          4  to consider and work with you on this bill and look

          5  forward to doing so.

          6                 That said, we believe the majority of

          7  the sidewalks in the areas of downtown Flushing

          8  referenced in the bill already prohibit general

          9  vending during most of the day and accordingly

         10  obstructions are prohibited in areas where general

         11  vending is prohibited during those times.

         12                 Enforcement of existing law should

         13  address at least a part of what you seek to achieve.

         14                 I would also like to point out that

         15  we believe there are at least ten stoopline stands

         16  that are regulated and licensed by the Department of

         17  Consumer Affairs in the area in question, which

         18  would not be affected by this legislation.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  testify before you today and I look forward to

         21  answering any questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Deputy

         23  Commissioner Woloch.  And we do have a number of

         24  questions, but before I proceed to questions, I

         25  would like you to defer to the prime sponsors of
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          2  these bills that we are considering today.  And we

          3  will start with a statement from Council Member

          4  Provenzano, who is the prime sponsor of Intro. 60.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

          6  you, Mr. Chairman. Sorry I am late, but talking

          7  about transportation, the FDR was awful.

          8                 Anyway, I would like to thank you for

          9  having a hearing on this bill today.  This bill has

         10  a long history of laying around. It was originally

         11  sponsored by Councilman Mike DeMarco, who was my

         12  predecessor, and when he went on to become a Judge,

         13  Tom Ognibene picked up the challenge, and when Tom

         14  moved on, since he was senior at the time, I could

         15  not pop in and do it, when Tom moved on, I became

         16  sponsor of the bill.

         17                 I believe in it now more than ever.

         18  It is over, I am in office six years, so the bill is

         19  older than that, and when we first thought that this

         20  bill needed to become law, there were less SUV's

         21  around than there are today.  I have not done

         22  research on it, but just looking at the cars on the

         23  road, I look at them, I do, I spend a lot of time in

         24  the car, and my guess would be that half the

         25  vehicles are SUV's.
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          2                 I would like thank profusely also my

          3  colleague Dennis Gallegher.  He has done a fantastic

          4  amount of research on this legislation.  And I think

          5  sometimes what happens, I am sorry that I missed

          6  your testimony, but you can be assured that I will

          7  read it.  I know the DOT is opposed to it.  And I

          8  think what happens sometimes is we measure what is

          9  good for the City by looking at Manhattan and people

         10  tend to forget or to dismiss or not to care too much

         11  what goes on in boroughs like the Bronx, Staten

         12  Island and Queens.

         13                 In my district this is very

         14  important.  DOT, again I did not read, I was not

         15  here for your testimony, DOT itself posts

         16  regulations on corners where there are visibility

         17  problems.  On the corner where I live there is a

         18  sign that reads "No Parking from Here to the Corner"

         19  and I do not know what they usually measure, my

         20  guess would be about 12 feet.  And I know one of the

         21  oppositions is that, you know, you cannot do that.

         22  Police will not enforce it. What are they supposed

         23  to do, go out with tapes?  They have an eye for a

         24  fire hydrant, they know the distance from a fire

         25  hydrant to a car, they will soon become accustomed
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          2  to doing the same thing for a vehicle.

          3                 Again, I am a strong -- I not only

          4  sponsor this bill, I really am going to do all that

          5  I can, and I know my colleague Dennis will join with

          6  me, to see that it gets passed.  I think at this

          7  time, when we have so many of these vehicles, you

          8  know, and again, so you cannot park your vehicle on

          9  the corner, you park it in another spot. The vehicle

         10  on the corner should be a regular sized vehicle.

         11                 I do not want to take any more time,

         12  but, again, I thank you, Mr. Chairman, for giving

         13  this bill a hearing today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         15  Member Provenzano. In addition, we have an opening

         16  statement about Intro. 60 from Council Member

         17  Gallagher, as well.  Both Council Members Provenzano

         18  and Gallagher have been very steadfast in pursuing

         19  this important issue.

         20                 Council Member Gallagher.  Before he

         21  speaks, we have also been joined by Council Member

         22  Alan Gerson from Manhattan, and Council Member Diana

         23  Reyna from Brooklyn.

         24                 Councilman Gallagher.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you.

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2    Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  First I do want to say

          3  thank you to Chairman Liu for making sure that this

          4  bill has a hearing and I look forward to trying to

          5  move this bill through the legislative process, and

          6  I also want to thank Council Member Provenzano and

          7  also Council Member Tom Ognibene, a former Council

          8  member who really was the one who pushed forward.

          9                 Let me just give you a few minutes on

         10  what this bill means to the community that I

         11  represent.  I represent the areas of Ridgewood,

         12  Glendale, and Middle Village, Woodhaven, Richmond

         13  Hill, Maspeth, communities, one- and two-family

         14  homes, lot of little streets in and out, and what we

         15  now is a situation where you put your life in your

         16  own hands to pull out into an intersection when you

         17  see an SUV or a van parked at a corner.  It is

         18  almost like you're playing Russian Roulette, where

         19  do I go?  Do I dart out now?  Do I wait a few

         20  minutes?  Maybe I can look through the side, the

         21  back doors in the windows of the vehicles to see if

         22  something is coming?  And it is the best guess.  I

         23  cannot tell you how many always stop signs have gone

         24  up throughout the communities because of right hand,

         25  right-angle accidents at intersections and that is
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          2  caused to my knowledge because of the failure to be

          3  able to see out into the intersection because of the

          4  proliferation of SUV's and vans that are parked at

          5  corners and at intersections.

          6                 I think the time has come for this

          7  City to look at this bill and to look at this bill

          8  seriously.  Yes, six years or more have gone by

          9  since Council Member DeMarco introduced this bill in

         10  the City Council.  The time is right.  Folks, in

         11  your testimony I believe someone, I am sorry that I

         12  was not available, had indicated that people

         13  preferred day lighting.  Day lighting eliminates

         14  parking spots.  We, in my community, cannot afford

         15  to have any additional spots taken away from us for

         16  daylighting.

         17                 The answer is sample, if it is a

         18  passenger vehicle on that corner, we can see over

         19  it.  If it is a van or SUV or a truck or something

         20  that is over a certain height, you cannot under any

         21  circumstances see forward.  I understand the DOT has

         22  opposed this measure in the past.  When we met with

         23  the Commissioner the Commissioner indicated that

         24  they may not be a reason, there may not be a law

         25  that would allow us to prohibit the size of a
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          2  vehicle. We went through the New york State law.  We

          3  bought examples over to the DOT Legal Division

          4  showing that it is not unusual for the law to have

          5  restrictions based on various things.  Height is one

          6  of them.

          7                 So I am hoping the DOT can take a

          8  walk throughout many of the communities in the City

          9  of New York and look at their own traffic studies

         10  and their own traffic data that indicates the

         11  right-angle accidents that occur all throughout this

         12  City and make a determination that the time for

         13  Intro. 60 is now and come onboard and support this

         14  legislation.  This will save property, it will save

         15  lives, it is overdue, and I am asking this Council,

         16  my colleagues, and DOT, to work on a solution to

         17  protect people in the City of New York.

         18                 And again, to the Chairman of this

         19  Committee, Council Member Liu, thank you.  Thank you

         20  for bringing this issue to the forefront, and thank

         21  you for making sure that there is a hearing today,

         22  and I look forward to a second hearing and God

         23  willing a vote on what I think is an important

         24  public initiative in the City of New York.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          3  Member Gallagher. We have also been joined by

          4  Council Member Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan, and

          5  Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.

          6                 Before we go to the next member who

          7  has comments, I would like to acknowledge that we

          8  were joined this morning by some very distinguished

          9  veterans who I understand have come down to testify

         10  on Intro. No. 279 that was originally placed on our

         11  calendar for this morning, but unfortunately we are

         12  not going to be discussing this particular bill

         13  because it is being worked on, in terms of we are

         14  trying to create, craft a better bill to address the

         15  problem of the permission to place a flagpole stands

         16  on sidewalks.  And so I want to thank you gentlemen

         17  for coming down this morning, but today we are not

         18  actually going to be hearing testimony on Intro.

         19  279. I apologize for any inconvenience that we may

         20  have caused you, and we will be in touch with

         21  Council Member Vinnie Gentile on this particular

         22  matter.  He has been pushing for this very hard,

         23  but, again, we need to craft a bill that is both

         24  workable and will achieve the goals that it intends

         25  to.
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          2                 About Intro. 279, you are welcome to

          3  -- I am happy to take your testimony, but I would

          4  do so only after we hear the testimony about the

          5  four bills that are on the agenda this morning.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 Next we have an opening statement by

          8  Council Member Alan Gerson, who is the prime sponsor

          9  of Intro. 226 concerning the metal plating and

         10  decking on streets during excavation operations.

         11                 Council Member Gerson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         13  very much, Chair Liu, for this hearing, and once

         14  again, for your extraordinary work on behalf of all

         15  of our communities.

         16                 Let me also acknowledge and thank

         17  Council Member Eva Moskowitz, who shares a common

         18  concern with me on this issue and with whom we are

         19  coordinating a direct frontal assault on noisy metal

         20  plates.  And I thank you, Council Member, for your

         21  leadership.

         22                 Before I get to the issue at hand,

         23  let me just say having listened to my esteemed

         24  colleagues, Madeline Provenzano and Dennis

         25  Gallagher, I had not previously in all honesty
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          2  focused on the issue that your bill addresses, but

          3  listening to you and reading it, it makes perfect

          4  sense to me and I can tell you, we do share the same

          5  problem of blocked intersections due to vehicles

          6  that are too high here in my district of Lower

          7  Manhattan.

          8                 So I thank you and I commend you for

          9  putting forth that bill, and I would look forward to

         10  supporting it.

         11                 Mr. Chair, before my voice gives way,

         12  and Madeline Provenzano will understand why, I will

         13  have to explain that later, it is nothing too

         14  interesting, I assure you, I just want to say, I

         15  think that Mr. Woloch, for whom I have the greatest

         16  respect and admiration his professionalism and

         17  creativity, is being a little disingenuous in his

         18  testimony in his explanation for opposition to the

         19  bill.  I think if he were to be fully forthright, he

         20  would admit that the Department would oppose the

         21  bill because they would be afraid of losing my

         22  incessant phonecalls to their offices and they enjoy

         23  hearing my voice so much and the dialogue that, you

         24  know, do not want that to go away and I would

         25  appreciate that.
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          2                 But the truth is, I think I call DOT

          3  more on the issue of noisy metal plates that are

          4  creating not just a minor disruption but a major

          5  racket to the point that people cannot sleep if they

          6  live above or nearby metal plates that are not

          7  installed properly, that this goes on all night, all

          8  day, when it is not properly installed. It is such a

          9  loud noise, which echoes and reverberates, it

         10  reaches the level of a physical assault on a person

         11  who is inflicted with it, and not just a quality of

         12  life interference but a major impingement on a

         13  person's health, both physical health, especially if

         14  ailing to begin with, and mental health if you are

         15  exposed to this source of excessive noise, as would

         16  be the case from exposure to any constant excessive

         17  noise.

         18                 And therefore, you know I am little

         19  disheartened to say, to read and to hear, that DOT

         20  feels that current rules already address implicitly

         21  and adequately the safety and quality of life

         22  concerns caused by unsecured poorly installed,

         23  shifted, or defective metal plates.

         24                 It is hard for me to believe that any

         25  New Yorker with open ears can say that.  I mean, we
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          2  can take a tour at any particular moment and I can

          3  point out any countless number of metal plates that

          4  are banging up and down because the were not

          5  properly installed.

          6                 I mean, Mr. Chair, I think at the

          7  second hearing, you know I hate to impose on a

          8  community needlessly, but it may be necessary at the

          9  second hearing to invite all of my constituents, let

         10  alone constituents from other districts who have

         11  dealt and deal with this problem on a regular basis

         12  to be here and testify and we will have an

         13  overflowing audience, I assure you that, Mr. Woloch.

         14                 Clearly the regulatory system is not

         15  currently working.  It is so just patent to anyone

         16  who is a casual observer of the New York scene, that

         17  we clearly have to do better.  And I was hoping we

         18  could work cooperatively and find a means of doing

         19  better.  The intent of the bill was to empower your

         20  Department and to make your job easier to serve us

         21  in this respect. I would welcome any recommendations

         22  for improvement, and, Mr. Chair, I will conclude on

         23  this note.  Clearly the intent was not to make it

         24  impossible for you to issue increased fines for

         25  repeated violations pending and adjudication, and if
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          2  the language reads to that effect we can certainly

          3  adjust the language, and I appreciate that

          4  constructive input.

          5                 But I will conclude on this note,

          6  really one of the problems, we know if metal plates

          7  are properly installed, you are right, they should

          8  not create a problem, in terms of noise or safety.

          9  But the putting down of a metal plate is typically

         10  the very last thing that is down at a construction

         11  site before people leave and go away, obviously.

         12  And you know, like anybody else at the end of the

         13  day, like me when I am finishing up, you are in a

         14  rush to leave and get home.  And so typically that

         15  job is done sloppily or hastily and not without

         16  proper care.  The intent of the bill was to

         17  strengthen the current regulatory scheme to require

         18  end-day procedures to assure that there is a

         19  sign-off mechanism so communities who have to live

         20  with the metal plate overnight are assured that they

         21  are properly installed so we do not have a sign-off

         22  mechanism now and then to allow enforcement when it

         23  is violated to be stronger and more effective.

         24                 When I called DOT and I had a sick

         25  person above a metal plate, I was told, well, we

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  have to call Con Ed.  I called Con Ed and they had

          3  to wait, they could not take care of it that day but

          4  they had to wait another day, and it dragged out for

          5  a week and this is just one of many countless

          6  examples.  We have got to do better.  So I would

          7  welcome your constructive engagement as to how to do

          8  better, but simply saying that the status quo is

          9  satisfactory and you are contemplating increasing

         10  the fines which are typically paid as a cost of

         11  doing business, that is not going to solve the

         12  problem.

         13                 So, I would ask you to go back and

         14  take this problem seriously and I will work with you

         15  to have the best possible piece of legislation to

         16  empower DOT.  But do not come back with a straight

         17  face and say that the current situation is adequate

         18  because it clearly is not.

         19                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         21  much, Council Member Gerson.

         22                 And we have a statement from Council

         23  Member Eva Moskowitz, who is the prime sponsor of

         24  Intro. No. 269.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Chairman Liu, and thank you so much for holding this

          3  hearing.

          4                 I just want to say very, very

          5  briefly, that right after 9/11, I thought this

          6  problem of metal plates was very very evident to me

          7  because my office got calls that they thought they

          8  were bombs going off, and what they were hearing in

          9  fact, were trucks going up Third Avenue going over

         10  these metal plates and they were quite frightened

         11  and scared.  And to me that says it all, that is in

         12  essence the problem and both Council Member Gerson

         13  and myself in slightly different ways are trying to

         14  find a means of addressing this problem.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And we

         17  have questions from Council Member Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.  And I really want to thank my colleagues,

         20  the sponsors of these bills because they address a

         21  very serious issue and I appreciate the hearing

         22  today.

         23                 Just a few questions.  Stating that

         24  the DOT has their rules and regulations and that

         25  this particular legislation would be, needless to
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          2  say, redundant.  What is your procedure for

          3  enforcing your rules and regulations?

          4                 How do you go about seeing that these

          5  plates are by your standards?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We have

          7  a division called the Highway Quality Assurance

          8  Division, which is comprised of inspectors.  And

          9  when we are notified that there is a problem with

         10  the plate, we will send out one of our inspectors

         11  and for both safety concerns and quality of life

         12  concerns, if the plate is not fastened properly, we

         13  will give a violation to the entity that put it

         14  down, and we will come back after the fact and make

         15  sure that they did the work that they were supposed

         16  to.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  What is being

         18  properly fastened?  I do not know what is, because

         19  if they were, it seems the only time the plates are

         20  removed is after they are not needed, not because

         21  they have not been meeting the rules and

         22  regulations.  So what are they supposed to do with

         23  those plates to see that they do not juggle and do

         24  all the musical symphony at three in the morning?

         25                 DEPUTY COMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, to
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          2  give you a technical answer I am  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think we

          4  need to understand that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- I am

          6  going to defer to Vincent Manescelko.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- We would

          8  have a better understanding of just maybe how

          9  legislation, if it need be, to be amended or

         10  adjusted in some way.

         11                 MR. MANESCELKO: At the end of the

         12  work day what the contractors are required to do is

         13  what we call in the term is "pinning", where they

         14  actually spike the plates on all four corners so

         15  they do not move when traffic goes over.  They are

         16  also required to, what we call "ramping", is to

         17  provide asphalt around it so it does not create a

         18  trip hazard and sort of like a speed bump.  That is

         19  the first thing the inspectors will look for is, was

         20  it properly pinned and ramped.

         21                 Sometimes if a heavy 18 wheeler would

         22  drive over it there is chances that the spikes will

         23  come out and the plates will shift.  We get calls,

         24  we inspect, not only is a violation issued, but the

         25  contractor is called.  Our main concern is safety,
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          2  because you have now an exposed excavation.  So the

          3  two terms of pinning and ramping is to secure the

          4  plates, is to spike them, so they do not move and

          5  they do not shift.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All the plates

          7  that I have seen throughout the City, because this

          8  is really a City issue, where everybody, every

          9  Council member is affected by it, so I will look at

         10  this as a big global picture.  I have seen so few

         11  plates pinned down they way you have just explained.

         12  I think I could safely say I have not seen any.  And

         13  that is a constructive comment, it is not something

         14  that is really against the agency, because you do

         15  good work and you are extremely cooperative and the

         16  commission that you are.

         17                 The fact is, I have not seen that.  I

         18  do not know how many of colleagues have at some

         19  point, but I have not seen one at any time

         20  throughout this City from the East side, the West

         21  side, in Brooklyn, in Queens, Manhattan, the Bronx

         22  and Staten Island.  I have been in all five boroughs

         23  and all five boroughs have plates down at some point

         24  because construction throughout this City, it is

         25  everyday at some point.
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          2                 What are the contractual

          3  arrangements?  Because if they have not done that

          4  from the very beginning, then somehow the

          5  enforcement of your rules and regulations leaves a

          6  lot to be desired.

          7                 I know that you are short of staff,

          8  so maybe you need legislation to assist in the

          9  seriousness of such a violation. Because it has

         10  reached a point that in the City of New York we have

         11  mixed use for everything - we have it for

         12  commercial, we have it for residential, we have it

         13  for industries, et cetera.  So you are not really

         14  isolating communities away from thoroughfares, and

         15  the way trucks are now and construction going on,

         16  they are on every side street, they are on every

         17  avenue that is a link to the side streets in

         18  communities, so we are not without that.  I cannot

         19  imagine that your Department, your agency, could get

         20  to every, every violation.  I think that is what

         21  really needs to be looked at, how do you do that?

         22  Because the violations exist or this legislation

         23  would not have been initiated, and you would not be

         24  getting the phone calls.  They are all over the

         25  City, all over, and they are perpetuated.  So it is
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          2  nice to hear a lot and have a dialogue, but, you

          3  know, we sit here to really resolve something, and I

          4  think you recognized and we all recognize the

          5  seriousness of this problem.

          6                 I have not heard how you can look at

          7  doing it.  You do not like the legislation, you know

          8  have this problem, and I do not know, I have not

          9  heard anything that would really help all of us to

         10  help you do this in the right way.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, I

         12  think Councilman Gerson identified part of the

         13  problem, which is to some extent the folks that are

         14  doing this work, will regard the fines that we levy

         15  on them as a cost of doing business.  And that

         16  dollar amount is very, is very important.  I mean,

         17  we will get to, we will inspect every location that

         18  gets called into us and that we are notified about,

         19  and we do give out lots and lots of violations. But

         20  to the extent that the entities that are doing the

         21  work do not really feel it in their pocketbook, they

         22  will regard it as a cost of doing business.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Who contracts

         24  them, if I can just interrupt?  Who contracts these

         25  companies that are feeling that they can pay that

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  fine, because it is a cost of doing business?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It is

          4  not so much a contract but it is the --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It is allowed.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- It is

          7  all the entities, a large chunk of it is the

          8  entities that have infrastructure under the streets.

          9  So it is the utilities, it is the cable companies,

         10  it is contractors that are doing work on behalf of

         11  the City, and all of them have to abide by the same

         12  sorts of stipulations regarding plates.  And the

         13  problem to some extent is that they are willing to

         14  take the hits.

         15                 I guess just to go back to a point

         16  that Councilman Gerson had made, it is not so much

         17  that we think the way the system is working now is

         18  working perfectly, it is more that the tools that we

         19  have now legally through the existing rules does

         20  afford us an ability to make some of the

         21  improvements that I think your legislation is geared

         22  towards, and I would not dismiss raising the fines

         23  out of hand.  I think that is an important component

         24  of this, and I think that is something we would like

         25  to engage with the Council in a dialogue on.
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          2                 We do have flexibility within our

          3  current rules to raise that fine threshold and I

          4  think that something that we want to look at

          5  seriously. We would like to discuss with you, and we

          6  think that can help make a difference.  Because at

          7  the end of the day, folks have to feel in their

          8  pocketbook, or else it is not going to be the

          9  concern that we want it to be.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Are you

         11  empowered to have, to pull in and have a meeting

         12  with the utilities that provide the services in the

         13  City of New York so they are very much aware

         14  repeatedly of exactly what their obligations are?

         15                 I know Community Boards do that, but

         16  do they have that kind of authority?

         17                 DEPUTY COMISSIONER WOLOCH:  If I had

         18  a nickel for every time that Vinnie had meet with

         19  the utilities on this subject, I would be in a

         20  better position.

         21                 We do talk to them all the time and

         22  we are in dialogue with them all the time.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But they are

         24  not listening a lot.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, I
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          2  think look to something, I do not want to put all

          3  the blame on them, I think that to some extent  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It is spread

          5  around.  So, it is really spread around.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  -- I

          7  think to some extent --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right, it

          9  is not pinpointing to one utility or to an agency,

         10  in fact is that you have to get permits to do this,

         11  somebody is responsible for issuing them, somebody

         12  is responsible for monitoring, and the fact is that

         13  everyone is a piece of the pie that are breaking

         14  your rules and regulations.  That is the bottom line

         15  and what we need to do is how do we get at

         16  diminishing those violations so that they get less

         17  and less.  They are not getting less and less, they

         18  are exploding throughout the City.  That is the

         19  problem.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         21  that is a fair way to describe it.  And again, we

         22  have had, we always have dialogue with our customers

         23  in this sense.  The folks that are doing work on the

         24  streets and there is always more you can do.  I am

         25  sure there is more we can do to communicate this
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          2  message effectively to them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, maybe

          4  you might be able to work with the Chair of the

          5  Committee and pull such a meeting together so that

          6  they would hear very carefully exactly what is

          7  happening in all 51 Districts in the City of New

          8  York.  Maybe you can be the impetus for pulling that

          9  together.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Again --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Can you?  I do

         12  not know.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We have

         14  dialogue with them all the time.  More dialogue

         15  never hurts.  You can never have too much

         16  communication.  So we are always happy to try to do

         17  that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: But

         20  again, at the end of the day it is to some extent,

         21  it is carrot and the stick and the stick is, the

         22  legislation reflects is a big part of it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you. And

         24  just one note on the SUV's and what Councilman

         25  Gallagher had to say, I know that there is an
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          2  assemblyman that is proposing legislation to ban

          3  SUV's, and I think they are looking to place that in

          4  a truck category of 6,000 pounds or more, because

          5  the SUV's are not only blocking, they are a hazard

          6  on the streets.  I think that everybody must be

          7  driving an SUV, because it seems like instead of

          8  getting smaller that everything has gotten bigger.

          9                 So, you really need to look at that.

         10  It is safety factor with this.  And I would agree

         11  that day lighting takes away spaces, but the issue

         12  can be corrected because the passenger cars have not

         13  really been an issue.

         14                 Our streets are not as small as they

         15  are in Greenwich Village, and some places they are,

         16  but not many.  And you cannot see, the SUV's, you

         17  cannot see north, east, south, or west, and that is

         18  what has to be looked at.

         19                 And certainly, I can tell you, I

         20  support banning them because they have reached a

         21  point where you cannot cross the street, seniors

         22  cannot cross the street with very limited vision,

         23  and mothers with carriages have a big problem, so

         24  you need to look at the whole picture.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Sears.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We have questions

          6  from Council Member Gallagher.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you,

          8  again, Mr. Chairman.  And thank you, Council Member

          9  Sears, for your support on this issue.

         10                 Let me just start by saying that I

         11  guess one of the things I hate most about government

         12  is the bureaucracy.  And reading the testimony, I

         13  just find it hard to believe that DOT really wants

         14  to find a way to work at this problem.  And I guess

         15  I have a long history, and I do not direct this at

         16  you personally, of various letters going back to Tom

         17  Ognibene, and before that to Council Member DeMarco

         18  on reasons why, and we have heard just about every

         19  reason under the sun why this bill will not work.

         20  And then each time we hear something, we come up

         21  with a reason to show that they are wrong.  I mean,

         22  I think that the last thing that we heard from the

         23  Commissioners Office, was that the reason why we

         24  cannot pass this bill, is because this type of

         25  regulation would discriminate against certain types
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          2  of vehicles and subject the City to lawsuits.

          3                 Well, I just want to advise you, and

          4  if you could kindly bring this back to your

          5  attorneys, that under the New York State Vehicle and

          6  Traffic Law, it uses dimensions to define types of

          7  vehicles subject to the set of regulations.

          8                 If you want one example, Section 122C

          9  if the VTL defines mobile homes based on their

         10  width, length, and saying the structures of eight

         11  body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more

         12  in length.  Even Section 385 of the VTL lays out in

         13  detail width, height and weight restrictions for

         14  vehicles.

         15                 Among other things, it states that

         16  the height of a vehicle from the underside of the

         17  tire to the top of the vehicle inclusive of load

         18  shall not be more than 13 and one half feet so on

         19  and so forth.

         20                 So that was one reason that they gave

         21  us, and now I read your testimony, and I read other

         22  reasons, so let us go through them.

         23                 First, the idea that you would like

         24  to daylight intersections in order to make them safe

         25  and to put them under separate and unique, let me

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  see how you said it, each one examines, you would

          3  have to each study, each intersection would have a

          4  study that they have to go to.

          5                 Well, if you were going to do ones in

          6  my community, you would have to do hundreds of

          7  intersections and hundreds of studies, and if you

          8  did wind up daylighting each and every one of them,

          9  how many feet would you take up with each

         10  daylighting?  Do you have an answer for that?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         12  it would be approximately 10 to 15 feet.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Usually 20

         14  feet, is that correct?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMSSIONER WOLOCH:  My

         16  understanding is about 15 feet.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Okay.  So

         18  15 feet, we are not doing that with this

         19  legislation.  All we are saying is, folks, we

         20  realize if you did a 100 spots just in my district

         21  and you day-lighted each and every one of them, you

         22  took up two car spots in each one, you would be

         23  cramping our community and people would not have an

         24  ability to park anywhere if you daylighted it just

         25  to make those intersections safe.  So the answer is,
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          2  you do not allow vehicles of certain heights to park

          3  at the intersections and you have the same number of

          4  spots available on the street.  Yes, sometimes it

          5  may be difficult for my wife who drives an SUV to

          6  find a spot, but so what, if it means public safety.

          7  So that is one issue that I --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          9  Councilman, if I could just respond to that?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Please.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: The main

         12  concern to us would be less that the drivers could

         13  not find a spot, the primary concern of what we,

         14  what I outlined in the testimony, is that from a

         15  safety prospective, the best thing you can do from a

         16  safety perspective is to not allow anybody to park

         17  there.

         18                 Just to give you an example, in

         19  Queens over the past year and a half, we have gotten

         20  254 requests for daylighting that were locations

         21  where we thought that might be a possible solution,

         22  and 153 were approved.

         23                 So it is a tool that we have been

         24  using throughout the City, and I guess at the end of

         25  the day the most important point is that, you are
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          2  right, safety is the overriding concern.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I just

          4  want to point out that, and let me just read from

          5  your testimony, you know, that "these types of

          6  locations where safety is not impaired, this

          7  legislation would merely limit on-street parking

          8  opportunities for area residents, many whom already

          9  have had difficult of appropriate parking."  So I

         10  just want to let you know that was in your testimony

         11  --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: -- And that

         14  is why I brought that issue out, to show that there

         15  really is no reduction in actual parking, there is

         16  only a limitation in SUV's having the ability to

         17  park on an intersection.  And I venture to say, that

         18  of the 243 different locations that you were going

         19  to survey, that many of which would not have to be

         20  surveyed if we put a restriction in that said only

         21  passenger-sized vehicles under five feet would be

         22  able to park at that location, because then you know

         23  what, folks would be able to see over them.  That is

         24  the problem.  And, yes, our community boards react

         25  to accidents, they react to different requests from
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          2  individuals, and they react that way because you

          3  know what?  You cannot pull out into the street with

          4  an SUV or a van or a truck that is parked on the

          5  corner.  That is the problem.  We do not have to

          6  daylight every intersection, what we have to do is

          7  make a restriction on who parks in and by those

          8  intersections, and that is the point of the

          9  legislation.

         10                 Another issue that I just wanted to

         11  talk to you about concerning how this would be

         12  enforced.  You know, let's see, I think the

         13  enforcement mechanism for sanitation about failure

         14  to sweep 18 inches into the street, I guess the

         15  Sanitation Officer does not take out a measurement

         16  everyday and goes into 18 and finds that little

         17  popsicle stick that they like to summons everybody

         18  for. No, they do it based on vision.

         19                 In addition, Police have an ability

         20  to summons and everybody has an ability to summons

         21  and Traffic Enforcement Agents have an ability to

         22  summons, when it is 15 feet away from a fire

         23  hydrant, right?  I do not presume that everybody

         24  goes out with a tape measure and marks off 15 feet

         25  to the back or the front of the car to make a
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          2  determination on whether or not that individual

          3  should be summons.  They have experience, they know

          4  distance.

          5                 The same thing when it comes to

          6  building lines.  If a car or a vehicle is supposed

          7  to be parked beyond a certain point of the building

          8  line, right?  They make a judgement call on that. So

          9  I do not think that enforcement really is an issue,

         10  or if it is an issue, I want to hear how these

         11  differ from what you might say, from the proposed

         12  law?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Just

         14  using one of those examples, the further example, I

         15  am sure that there are any opportunities where the

         16  Police Department does not necessarily get it

         17  exactly right with fire hydrants, where they may not

         18  ticket somebody because it is close, and as you

         19  said, they do not walk around with a tape measure.

         20  There are probably other incidences where people do

         21  get tickets where in fact they were 15 feet away.  I

         22  mean, you are injecting one more subject of variable

         23  into what Enforcement Agents have to do and it is a

         24  concern.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: True.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Again,

          3  not the Department's primary concern but it is a

          4  concern.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Just so

          6  you know, if a SUV is parked 14 feet nine inches

          7  away from a corner and they decide not to give them

          8  the summons, that is okay by me because at least the

          9  person would have an ability to view out, but when

         10  that SUV is parked all the way up in the front and

         11  somebody cannot see at all, that is where the

         12  summons would go.

         13                 I would just like to say in closing

         14  that I would love to have an opportunity, as I have

         15  had in the past, to meet with Council Member

         16  Provenzano and any and all Council Members and

         17  especially the Chairman of this Committee, John Liu,

         18  to sit down with DOT and to recognize, that yes, it

         19  is easy to say no to legislation, but let's find a

         20  way to make this work.  Because every day that goes

         21  by there is another accident.  This is a public

         22  safety initiative, one that is long overdue, and one

         23  that we have to act upon immediately.  And I do not

         24  want to hear any more, I do not know, I just was not

         25  very impressed with the objections of the Department
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          2  of Transportation on this bill. Every one of those I

          3  believe is nonsense and we can work through, and I

          4  think we are missing an opportunity, this is about

          5  safety.  It is about safety and this is about

          6  something that we should have already, and we have

          7  an opportunity to do now.  So I am calling upon you

          8  to look through the bill, come up with solutions, do

          9  something that will help the City of New York, do

         10  something that will relieve a major problem in my

         11  community, Council Members Sears' and Liu's

         12  district, and Council Member Provenzano's.  We

         13  support this legislation because we know of the

         14  problem in our area.  We live there.  We go door to

         15  door, we drive in the streets, we see the accidents,

         16  we are the local representatives, we know the

         17  issues, we know the concerns, and I am telling you,

         18  this is a major concern, one that the DOT is behind

         19  the curve on, and should move forward in working out

         20  a solution with this Council on what bill to pass.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         23  Councilman, thank you. Let me just say we agree it

         24  is a safety concern.  I think we have different

         25  perspective on the safety issue, but we are happy to
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          2  sit down with you and the other members and talk

          3  about it further.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Thank

          5  you, Council Member Gallagher.

          6                 A brief question from Council Member

          7  Gerson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you,

          9  Chair Liu.  Just a couple very particulars.

         10                 And by the way, I welcome your

         11  commitment to increasing the fines.  I support that

         12  100 percent.  I agree with you that that will go a

         13  long way.  My concern is that relying on fines alone

         14  will not fully solve the problem.  But I certainly

         15  was not, you know, I certainly support that and

         16  that, in fact, reflects the intent and the purpose

         17  of the legislation.  If I sound frustrated on this

         18  issue, it is because it is so vexing and it is

         19  because it is a frustration borne out of, again,

         20  respect for all that I know you and your Department

         21  is capable of doing.

         22                 So let me just ask you very quickly.

         23  Currently you get a complaint, you send out an

         24  Inspector, there is a problem; does DOT have any

         25  crew that it could send to fix the problem on the
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          2  spot?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I do not

          4  think that is what we would want to do, that

          5  probably would not be the best way to try to address

          6  this safety issue in the most safe manner.  You want

          7  the people who have done the work, who put it out

          8  there in the first place to fix it.  I think the

          9  most useful thing we can do is take our highly

         10  trained eyes, get them out there as quickly as

         11  possible, figure out if there is a problem, and let

         12  them know about it, and put the squeeze on them so

         13  that they fix it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  DOT does not

         15  have any expertise within its crews to safely fasten

         16  a metal plate on the streets that are subject to DOT

         17  jurisdiction?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Certainly

         19  we have our own roadway repair responsibilities, so

         20  we have people that in theory could do this.  But,

         21  again, this work that is being done is being

         22  undertaken by these other entities, and I think the

         23  worse thing that you could do is send in somebody

         24  else to start taking the responsibility for them.

         25  It would probably, I think at the end of the day it

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  would cause problems than it would help.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Typically if

          4  DOT, though, sees a problem, would you then cordoned

          5  off the area so traffic cannot go over the metal

          6  plate?

          7                 MR. MANESCELKO:  Absolutely.

          8                 In fact there has been cases where I

          9  actually had my inspectors with their vehicles, with

         10  the lights, stay there, just to make sure that no

         11  traffic go over it until the contractor showed up.

         12  They have reflective tape, barrels, cones, so the

         13  answer is yes.  We are not going to leave the site.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  You are not

         15  telling me that you never leave the site if it is

         16  not properly installed, are you?

         17                 MR. MANESCELKO:  No. What we are

         18  saying is that if it is an unsafe condition, if the

         19  plate has shifted and there is a danger, the

         20  inspector will stay there until the contractor

         21  showed up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  What if it is

         23  just terribly noisy but not unsafe?

         24                 MR. MANESCELKO:  One of the things we

         25  have tried is if we can, we have actually shut down
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          2  the lane from 10 p.m. to 5 a.m., we have actually

          3  had contractors put barrels, close that lane, when

          4  it is a big excavation with multiple plates. We look

          5  at the situation and say, look, if we close this

          6  lane, it is not going to impact traffic, you are not

          7  going to have one side of the road, you are coming

          8  on head on.  So we would actually close off until 5

          9  a.m. when there is morning traffic and so the cars

         10  do not go over it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just two

         12  more, and I would just suggest, and I am reassured

         13  to hear that, though, from my experience it is not

         14  universal or even typical of the case that upon

         15  finding a metal plate that is not properly fastened

         16  that the lane will either be automatically closed

         17  off or shut down in any other way, but maybe you

         18  want to look to expanding that. But just because of

         19  what you said, that you need to rely on the

         20  contractors to do the fixing that is all the more

         21  reason, it would seem to me, to insure an adequate

         22  procedure at the end of the day to make sure that

         23  they do the job, and I will conclude on this note.

         24                 Isn't it typical that the actual

         25  metal plates are installed not by the contractors
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          2  but by subcontractors?  That is what Con Ed tells me

          3  all the time when I call them, they say they cannot

          4  send out a crew to fix it because they have to call

          5  the subcontractor, because it is the subcontractor's

          6  responsibility.

          7                 MR. MANESCELKO:  Con Ed has an

          8  emergency crew at night, but Con Ed is the permittee

          9  of record and the violation will go to Con Ed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right.

         11  But the people who put in the actual plate, isn't it

         12  typically a subcontractor or often a subcontractor?

         13                 MR. MANESCELKO:  In many times they,

         14  the utility companies would use a subcontractor, but

         15  I have called myself, Con Ed, and said, you know, I

         16  understand there is a subcontractor, but you are

         17  responsible, you are the permittee of record, if

         18  someone gets hurt it is your lawsuit.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I understand

         20  that.  But typically their response is to call the

         21  subcontractor, is that not correct?  Initially at

         22  least?

         23                 MR. MANESCELKO:  I will call the

         24  permittee of record, that is the --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  You will, but
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          2  will they do then?

          3                 MR. MANESCELKO:  As long as a crew

          4  goes out there, whether it is a utility company, a

          5  subcontractor, as long as a crew goes out there to

          6  make it safe.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I agree with

          8  you, as long as it is done, it is done.  But I am

          9  saying typically the people who do it are the

         10  subcontractors, not the contractors.

         11                 MR. MANESCELKO:  They would install

         12  the plate, and the contractor will call them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just would,

         14  I would like to, I know we have a time schedule, so

         15  I do not want to pursue this now, but could we get

         16  together and review the possibility of coming up

         17  with day's end regulations that would possibly, in

         18  addition to increase fines, get at the problem; is

         19  that something that we could dialogue about?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         21  Councilman, we are always happy to sit down with you

         22  and talk about any subjects, but we would be happy

         23  to do that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And actually

         25  currently your regulations are a matter of DOT
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          2  issuance of regulations, they are not codified in

          3  the administrative code permanently; is that

          4  correct?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMSSIONER WOLOCH:  They are

          6  in the DOT rules.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But they are

          8  not in the Administrative Code presently?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  This

         10  particular set is not in the Administrative Code.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right, we

         12  might want to consider if that would help with

         13  enforcement also.  Anyway, thank you very much.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         16  Member Gerson.

         17                 Questions from Council Member

         18  Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you,

         20  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 Just a couple of questions in

         22  reference to the plating, after hearing that.  There

         23  is a unit that goes out and inspects each of these

         24  permitted sites that are open, are they actually on

         25  a regular run, or this is done if they are called
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          2  about a situation?

          3                 MR. MANESCELKO: No, it is routinely

          4  inspect.  Each permittee takes out a permit and they

          5  would, the inspectors would get that in their work,

          6  so they would just go out, whether or not we get a

          7  complaint.  So it is a routine, the inspectors will

          8  go out and inspect the jobsite.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So these

         10  inspectors go out and inspect every job site that

         11  actually, that is permitted, to see if this pinning

         12  takes place, and that is documented and where does

         13  that go when these inspectors go out, where does

         14  that documentation go?

         15                 MR. MANESCELKO: We keep the

         16  information in our office that everything is okay,

         17  if a jobsite or if a violation was issued.  Not all

         18  the job sites are required to be pinned.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Right.  But

         20  the ones that are required to be pinned --

         21                 MR. MANESCELKO: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: -- And

         23  required to be skid proof, they are inspected, you

         24  are saying?

         25                 MR. MANESCELKO:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  And that

          3  information is brought back and is documented that

          4  the inspection took place?

          5                 MR. MANESCELKO: Right and whether or

          6  not the permit passed or not, the inspection passed

          7  or not.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I should

          9  add, if we do get a complaint, we will also respond

         10  to that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay. So,

         12  based upon that, how many inspections that have gone

         13  out, that have come back with violations, what is

         14  the amount from last year and the amount this year?

         15  The amount of fines that were levied and the amount

         16  of fines that were collected?

         17                 MR. MANESCELKO:  I could report on

         18  the number of summonses issued to steel plates, as

         19  far as the fines collected, that is ECB.  We issued

         20  984 summonses for plates not being secured in Fiscal

         21  Year'03

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:

         23  Nine-hundred and eighty-four summonses --

         24                 MR. MANESCELKO:  Summonses.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  -- Were
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          2  issued?

          3                 MR. MANESCELKO:  Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  And these

          5  summonses, out of the 984, how many were repeat?

          6                 MR. MANESCELKO:  I do not have that

          7  information, Councilman.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Because

          9  there is a different finding for repeat offenders,

         10  correct?

         11                 MR. MANESCELKO:  ECB allows us to

         12  have a repeat offender, but the issue there is that

         13  you would first wait for the first summons to be

         14  adjudicated, and that could take 60 days.  What we

         15  routinely do, if we do not get cooperation from a

         16  contractor, if they are getting a $400 summons

         17  today, and the condition is the same tomorrow, they

         18  are going to get another $400 summons until it is

         19  corrected.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Right. And

         21  how long does that continue?  Is that each day that

         22  they are actually in violation that they are fined

         23  additionally?

         24                 MR. MANESCELKO:  We could go out

         25  everyday and issue a $400 summons.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  But has

          3  that been done?

          4                 MR. MANESCELKO:  In some cases we

          5  have gone out and it has taken more than one day,

          6  but I can assure you, that the contractors are

          7  called repeatedly to get a crew out there and we do

          8  make you stay there until it is fixed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  So you

         10  would actually have in your possession the amount of

         11  summonses issued, the amount of repeaters; do you

         12  also have the amount of those who decided to be

         13  derelict and deadbeats, as well, but continued to be

         14  issued permits?

         15                 MR. MANESCELKO:  We could probably

         16  get that data.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  But there

         18  are people who are actually violators who

         19  continuously refused to adhere to your regulations,

         20  but permits are continuously issued to them to

         21  continue to do the same type of work; is that

         22  correct?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  If you

         24  are asking if there are examples where there are

         25  improperly fastened plates where we give a violation
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          2  and they never, never do the repairs, I do not think

          3  that happens.  I think evidently, and usually rather

          4  quickly, they will respond and they will make the

          5  necessary repairs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  What I'm

          7  saying, if I went to you and asked for your records

          8  and your records would indicate that you have repeat

          9  offenders who have violated this regulation and have

         10  refused to pay any summonses, but are continuously

         11  issued permits, is that a correct statement to say

         12  that that exists, that they will continue to be

         13  issued permits, that you have done that or you do

         14  not do that?  Is there a policy that says that if

         15  you are a repeat offender of this, we will not issue

         16  a permit; do you have that in your regulations?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I will

         18  have to look at that.

         19                 MR. MANESCELKO: We'll have to go back

         20  and look into it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay,

         22  because what happens here is that in the community

         23  in which I represent, I do not speak for every

         24  community, but there is a continuation of these

         25  violations, for the first time you are telling me,
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          2  because I did not that someone actually comes out

          3  and inspects, because I just thought that they were

          4  -- sometimes they are lying all over the place,

          5  things just fly all over the place, so I was never

          6  under the assumption, and who took on the

          7  responsibility of even moving them back in place or

          8  putting them down, we have situations like that.  So

          9  I am happy to find out that there is a unit that

         10  actually will go out and inspect.

         11                 Secondly, I would like to know about

         12  those people who are repeat violators, and who

         13  continue, and how, that perhaps this Council needs

         14  to look into ways of eliminating these people who

         15  just decide that they are going to skirt the law or

         16  disregard that and continue to have this.

         17                 Just I am going to finish up, Mr.

         18  Chairman, I just have one question.  In these 984

         19  summonses that were issued in these sites, have any

         20  of these sites been a part of any litigation against

         21  the City of New York as it relates to civil

         22  penalties, in terms of people bringing a suit

         23  against the City of New York, and have received

         24  compensation as a City, as joined in as a party to a

         25  suit with these contractors out of these 984 that
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          2  have been issued, have people actually bought

          3  litigation?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISIONER WOLOCH:  We do not

          5  have that information with us.  We could go back and

          6  look into it.  I would imagine that since these were

          7  from the past year, it would not have gotten to that

          8  point, that point yet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Oh, yes,

         10  you have to file a complaint.  There is a time

         11  period in terms of filing a complaint, otherwise you

         12  lose your right in standing in terms of the Court.

         13  What I like to know is that out of these 984 that

         14  have been issued, are these people, are the citizens

         15  of New York filing a suit based on an action that

         16  was brought about by a contractor with the City and

         17  permitted and brought into litigation? Because I

         18  think that is important.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMSIIONER WOLOCH:  We can

         20  certainly look into it.  Again, I just like to

         21  remind you that, again, most of the work is not

         22  being done on a contractual basis for the City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  No, I

         24  understand that.  But the City still has a

         25  liability, jointly they have liability.  So what I
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          2  am saying is how, and have those litigations brought

          3  the City and hauled them into court on the basis of

          4  these 984 violations?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSION WOLOCH:  We will

          6  look into that and we will get back to you,

          7  Councilman.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Well, Mr.

          9  Chairman, I would hope that we can get that

         10  information, because I think that is important, that

         11  if we are allowing these repeat offenders, and then

         12  we are talking about tort reform, then that is a

         13  serious state that we have and that we need to look

         14  into, that if we are not correcting the situation

         15  and then we are paying out damages to something that

         16  we are part of.  I would hope not, but we would

         17  certainly like to look at it.

         18                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, and we

         20  will follow up in collecting that information,

         21  Council Member Seabrook.

         22                 Council Member Provenzano with the

         23  final set of questions.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

         25  you, Mr. Chairman.

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Many of the points that I wanted to

          3  raise or the questions I had were already addressed

          4  by Council Member Gallager, but there are a few

          5  little items that I would like to either bring out

          6  or ask you about.

          7                 Talking about case by case once more,

          8  and the unique characteristics of each individual

          9  intersection.  You told Councilman Gallagher that --

         10  gave him a number for the amount in Queens; do you

         11  have a number for the amount in the Bronx?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I will

         13  have to get back to you to get a comparable number.

         14  I just happened to have that number with me.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  It has

         16  been my experience that when we do submit an

         17  intersection for such a research project, which is

         18  what it turns out to be, and this in no way

         19  criticizes our Borough Commissioner in the Bronx, he

         20  is absolutely fantastic, but he can only go so far,

         21  the final decision on these must come from downtown.

         22  And it has been my experience, and I have six years

         23  in the Council and 19 years prior experience as the

         24  Chief of Staff to the prior Councilperson, that we

         25  give evidence of, you know, 20 accidents five
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          2  deaths, and it comes back, sorry.

          3                 So when we are talking about case by

          4  case, for that reason, I do not think that it will

          5  work.  For many other reasons, I do not think that

          6  it will work.  Again, it eliminates parking spaces.

          7  There are certain situations where it would apply.

          8  For instance, on my corner, I repeat again, we have

          9  one these "no parking from here to the corner", but

         10  there is an incline.

         11                 I also repeat something I eluded to

         12  in my opening statement, that I, it has been my

         13  experience, particularly with DOT, that they look at

         14  these things and view them with a Manhattan

         15  mentality, and you and I have had this conversation

         16  on a personal basis. And I think there are

         17  situations, there definitely are in my part of the

         18  Bronx, and probably more so in other areas of the

         19  Bronx, again I, there is no one here to defend

         20  Staten Island, but I think Staten Island has similar

         21  districts to the one that I have and certainly in

         22  Queens, and I think that these should certainly be,

         23  when you think of Manhattan it is kind of laid out

         24  nice and neat, there are blocks going this way and

         25  blocks going this way.  It does not happen in the
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          2  Bronx, it does not happen in Queens, it does not

          3  happen in Staten Island.  And I think we have to use

          4  another kind of mentality when we are addressing

          5  these issues.

          6                 I have one suggestion and this worked

          7  for one piece of legislation that I introduced, it

          8  was my C Summons Bill, which the Police Department

          9  heard testimony on, but of course they liked the

         10  legislation, and they did a pilot program.  In 18

         11  precincts throughout the borough, they ultimately

         12  mandated that the program be initiated Citywide.  I

         13  would like to suggest that possibly DOT would look

         14  into doing this as a pilot project. I do not even

         15  know if that is feasible, but I would like to think

         16  that we could sit down and discuss it as a pilot

         17  project, maybe in certain boroughs.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As I had

         19  suggested earlier, we do have safety concerns with

         20  this particular proposal, but I think we are in

         21  agreement that there is a safety benefit to

         22  day-lighting, and we would be happy to sit down with

         23  you and talk about ways that daylighting could be

         24  used more effectively in your community in the

         25  Bronx.  We are happy to sit down and have that
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          2  discussion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I thank

          4  you for that, but also, I think, you know, you

          5  pushing daylighting is not really the answer.

          6  Again, in our districts in our boroughs parking is a

          7  premium and we all are, you know, safety is

          8  foremost, but there are lots of areas where

          9  visibility is the issue and the visibility problem

         10  is what creates the safety factor.  If you take care

         11  of the visibility, the safety factor disappears.

         12                 Also, the Police Department was not

         13  hear to testify, you spoke for them, and I think the

         14  whole issue of 15 feet is really moot, or five feet.

         15  I am five feet tall, those that know me know that

         16  this is about this tall. I do not think that there

         17  is any SUV in the country whose height is below five

         18  feet, so I think that, you know, we are talking

         19  about SUV's, they are much taller than five feet.

         20                 Also, if a vehicle is parked on the

         21  corner it is usually two, three feet from the

         22  corner, so the Police Department does not have to

         23  bother themselves with getting out their tape

         24  measure, because if an SUV would be on that corner,

         25  it is violating a law.  So I think their whole
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          2  argument just sort of dissolves.

          3                 But again I, you know, am adamant

          4  about pursuing this bill, this piece of legislation,

          5  and I will try and get as many sponsors from the

          6  City Council as I can.  I am hopeful that this is

          7  not the last hearing we will have, and I thank you,

          8  again, Chairman, for having a hearing on this and

          9  hopefully there will be another one and we will pass

         10  it out.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         12  Member Provenzano.  We have one final very quick

         13  follow-up from Council Member Sears.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         15                 You know, in your rules and

         16  regulations, is there a time frame in which whatever

         17  utility, whatever subcontractor, but the prime

         18  contractor, is there a time that when you give the

         19  -- that it must be completed?  Because if it was,

         20  you would not have to reissue summonses.  It is,

         21  because, as stated earlier, you know, they pay them

         22  because it is the cost of doing business, but if

         23  there was some very strict rule, and I do not know

         24  if there is, that is why I am asking, you have to,

         25  if they are incompliance with that, have to go and
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          2  reissue those summonses. There should be a time

          3  frame within your own rules.  If not, because there

          4  are some things that are coming up that I think

          5  legislatively could help your rules and regulations.

          6                 MR. MANESCELKO:  It is not in the

          7  rules with the steel plates, but when we have called

          8  contractors, we will tell them you have three hours

          9  or four hours to come out and make it safe or we are

         10  going to give you another summons.  And we usually

         11  feel, the majority of times, they will come out and

         12  they will fix because they do not want to get

         13  another summons.  We do find good compliance.  It is

         14  not written in the rules, it is an internal policy.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Since they are

         16  really abiding by rules because of this, is that

         17  something that you could consider?

         18                 You know, if they write this off for

         19  the cost of doing business, they could go on until

         20  they either get somebody to do it, or realize they

         21  may have to get some other kind of plate to replace

         22  the one they put in.  Many of these streets are

         23  curved, it seems like they are just standard plates,

         24  and then they have the problems because the street

         25  itself is not a standard street.  So maybe you might
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          2  want to think about that?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          4  Absolutely something we can look into.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.

          6                 If it is after, Councilman Gerson has

          7  asked, now if it is after business hours, what

          8  happens then?  Like what happens with the two and

          9  three o'clock in the morning?

         10                 MR. MANESCELKO: I have a night crew

         11  out there.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: A night crew.

         13                 MR. MANESCELKO: We have inspectors at

         14  night, too. We do get complaints at night too.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  A lot.  I am

         16  sure you get a lot of them.

         17                 MR. MANESCELKO: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But I would

         19  think if there is opposition in legislation that you

         20  might see how it could be appeased by what you do to

         21  strengthen your rules, and maybe that is something

         22  that then could be enforced by other means.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         24  Absolutely something we can look into.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          5  Member Sears.

          6                 And thank you Deputy Commissioner

          7  Woloch, and your team, for coming down and

          8  testifying this morning.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSINER WOLOCH:  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to

         12  call the next panel of witnesses to join us at the

         13  witness table.  John Banks from Con Edison and Cosmo

         14  Iannicco Keyspan Energy.

         15                 While they are preparing to testify,

         16  let us welcome future or potential future members of

         17  the City Council.  They have a few years to go.

         18  They do come from Council Member Diana Reyna's

         19  district, and Council Member Reyna is a member of

         20  the City Council's Committee on Transportation.  We

         21  welcome our distinguished guests from PS 18 and PS

         22  132 in Brooklyn.

         23                 Good morning, gentlemen.

         24                 MR. CHIN: Good morning.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please proceed, and
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          2  identify yourselves, for the record.

          3                 MR. CHIN:  Good morning, for those

          4  who know me that I am not John Banks, he had another

          5  commitment and he sends his apologies ahead.  I will

          6  present the testimony for Con Edison.

          7                 Good morning, my name is Andrew Chin,

          8  I am Manager of Government Relations for the

          9  Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc.  Thank

         10  you for this opportunity to express Con Edison's

         11  views on Intro. 226 and Intro. 269.

         12                 First, let me begin with some basic

         13  facts about our service area.  Con Edison supplies

         14  electricity, gas and steam to over 3 million

         15  customers in New York City and Westchester County

         16  over an area of approximately 660 square miles.  The

         17  total population within the service area is 8.7

         18  million and we provide electricity to approximately

         19  400,000 commercial and industrial customers within

         20  New York City alone.

         21                 In order to provide these services,

         22  Con Edison maintains almost 90,000 miles of

         23  underground electric cable, some 4,200 miles of gas

         24  mains, and over 100 miles of steam pipes.

         25                 At the outset, it should be noted
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          2  that we share and support the Council's ongoing

          3  efforts to minimize noise associated with

          4  construction activity and we strive to carry out our

          5  activities with minimal inconvenience to the public,

          6  while putting the safety of our workers and public

          7  above all else.

          8                 Con Edison employees work 24 hours a

          9  day, seven days a week, performing a vital service

         10  to our customers.  In doing so, Con Edison has

         11  issued some 32,000 street opening permits a year, to

         12  perform emergency restoration, maintenance, and new

         13  service work on its energy systems.

         14                 These permits are issued by the New

         15  York City Department of Transportation, known as

         16  DOT, which governs excavations.  In particular,

         17  DOT's Highway Rules and individual permit

         18  stipulations dictate the way we work in performing

         19  and including the maintenance and control of traffic

         20  and the hours that we work.

         21                 The Highway Rules already cover many

         22  of the issues that Intro. 226 and 269 attempts to

         23  address.  Section 2-11(e)(10) of the Highway Rules

         24  state:

         25                 1.  All plating and decking installed
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          2  by the permittee shall me made safe for vehicles

          3  and/or pedestrians and shall be adequate to carry

          4  the load.

          5                 2.  The size of the plate or decking

          6  shall be large enough to span the opening, be firmly

          7  placed to prevent rocking and shall overlap the

          8  edges of the trenches and openings and be

          9  sufficiently ramped to provide smooth riding and

         10  safe conditions.

         11                 3.  All plating and decking shall be

         12  fastened splicing, countersinking or otherwise

         13  protected to prevent movement.  Where deflections

         14  are more than 3/4 inches, heavier sections of plates

         15  or decking or intermediate supports shall be

         16  installed.

         17                 As can be seen, the existing language

         18  in the Highway Rules virtually mirrors the plating

         19  and decking requirements offered of the present

         20  Intros.  Thus, as a matter of current practice, at

         21  the end of the day an excavation is plated in

         22  accordance with the requirements as set forth in the

         23  Highway Rules. However, there is no getting around

         24  the fact that field conditions are often the single

         25  biggest factor effecting how well plates are secure
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          2  and remain secure.  Placing a heavy flat steel plate

          3  on what is essentially a curved surface is no easy

          4  task, but our crews secure to the best that

          5  conditions allow.

          6                 As noted above, the requirements of

          7  the Intros virtually mirror the current rules,

          8  except for the proposed requirement for a minimum of

          9  noise when driven upon.

         10                 Thus,  many of the practices mandated

         11  under Intro. 226 and intended to reduce noise levels

         12  are already being implemented at street excavation

         13  sites around the City.

         14                 As such, the Intro's subjective

         15  requirement to minimize noise is in reality

         16  problematic, since the actions proposed to minimize

         17  noise are already covered and in practice under the

         18  existing highway rules.

         19                 The reality, unfortunately, is that

         20  unless excavations are barricaded and traffic forced

         21  around the excavation, or trucks and buses kept off

         22  the plates, street excavation work will in some

         23  instances make noise regardless of how the plates

         24  are secured.

         25                 Aside from this problem, there are
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          2  two additional issues that raise serious concerns

          3  with Intro. 226.  The first involves the requirement

          4  to have an agent designated by the permit holder

          5  authorized to perform the project to supervise and

          6  certify the proper placement of plating and decking.

          7                 Our excavation projects, whether

          8  performed by company forces or contractors, are

          9  supervised by personnel trained in proper

         10  construction practices, safety and regulatory

         11  compliance.

         12                 The requirement to have an agent

         13  certify the placement of plating and decking

         14  unnecessarily goes above the responsibility of a

         15  crew leader and unreasonably imposes a liability on

         16  that individual that is a particularly onerous

         17  burden especially in today's litigious environment.

         18                 As a matter of law, regulatory

         19  requirements do and should demand penalties for

         20  non-compliance.  We do not, however, see the need to

         21  introduce this additional requirement for individual

         22  certification into this regulatory scheme.

         23                 Con Edison, for one, is committed to

         24  performing the excavation projects using good

         25  construction practices and abiding by all rules and
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          2  regulations.

          3                 However, having one individual

          4  certifying an aspect of the operation, and being

          5  individually liable for that certification, will not

          6  likely lead to greater compliance.

          7                 The Department of Transportation

          8  already has an inspection program and if an entity

          9  is in non-conformance, they are issued a Corrective

         10  Action Request or a Notice of Violation.

         11                 As a practical matter, many instances

         12  of loose plates exist simply because we are often

         13  unaware of situations where plates shift due to

         14  traffic thus potentially creating a noisy condition.

         15                 Current rules require that signs be

         16  posted at excavation sites with a phone number for

         17  the public to direct complaints, including noise.

         18                 New Yorkers can also call

         19  1-800-75CONED, and we do respond to these

         20  complaints.  Encouraging new and alternative methods

         21  of notification to those entities excavating might

         22  help address part of the targeted condition.

         23                 The second concern we have with

         24  Intro. 226 is the proposed penalty provision that

         25  states "Any person who fails to comply with
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          2  provisions of this section shall be liable for a

          3  penalty in the amount of $250 for a first violation.

          4                 For every violation thereafter, the

          5  Department shall impose a fine in an amount double

          6  the amount of fine imposed for the immediately

          7  preceding the violation."

          8                 It is unclear from this language

          9  whether the "any person" as stated in this provision

         10  is meant to include an entity such as Con Edison, or

         11  the individual certifying the excavation. In either

         12  case, it should be noted that it would only take 13

         13  violations to reach the million dollar fine mark.

         14                 We assume the intent was to be

         15  location specific and double the fines for repeat

         16  violations at a particular location and not on the

         17  entity itself.

         18                 Even so, it is our belief that the

         19  current Highway Rules provide a reasonable and

         20  effective mechanism in deterring violations, and the

         21  imposition of a new fine structure is not warranted.

         22                 In conclusion, the existing New York

         23  City Department of Transportation Highway Rules

         24  seemingly satisfies the intent of Intro. 226 and

         25  Intro. 269.
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          2                 As currently drafted, the additional

          3  requirements add confusion and costs to the process

          4  without producing a likely benefit to constituents

          5  and customers.

          6                 Con Edison is committed to providing

          7  safe and economical energy services for New Yorkers,

          8  and like the Administration and the City Council, to

          9  maintain and improve the quality of life in the

         10  City.

         11                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         12  share our views with this Committee.  I will be glad

         13  to answer any questions you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         15                 Mr. Iannicco.

         16                 MR. IANNICCO:  Am I on?  Thank you.

         17                 Good morning. My name is Cosmo

         18  Iannicco, I am here representing KeySpan Energy

         19  Delivery of New York City.  I am the manager of

         20  External Liaison for the Gas Business Unit serving

         21  New York City.

         22                 I wish to thank this Committee on

         23  Transportation for the opportunity to provide

         24  comments on proposal Intro. 226 and 269 this

         25  morning.
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          2                 Let me begin with a brief description

          3  of the scope of Keyspan's service activities on

          4  behalf of our New York City customers.

          5                 Keyspan is the largest distributor of

          6  natural gas in New York City.  We distribute natural

          7  gas to over 1.1 million customers within the

          8  Boroughs of Brooklyn, Queens, and Staten Island.

          9                 The Gas Business Unit Field

         10  Operations Area is responsible for constructing and

         11  maintaining the company's underground gas

         12  distribution system, which consists of approximately

         13  3,900 miles of mains and 500,000 services within our

         14  New York service territory.

         15                 Keyspan employees are well trained

         16  and highly skilled to perform the work involved in

         17  delivering natural gas.  Our operations are

         18  conducted in full compliance with all applicable

         19  Federal, State and City laws and regulations as

         20  enforced by the New York State Department of Public

         21  Service, as well as various agencies of the City of

         22  New York.

         23                 Keyspan is committed to improving the

         24  quality of life of all New Yorkers and our foremost

         25  concern is and always has been safety.  We continue
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          2  to work cooperatively with the various City

          3  agencies, including the Department of Transportation

          4  Highway Department to facilitate traffic flow,

          5  reduce noise, improve the safety of vehicular and

          6  pedestrian traffic and generally improve the quality

          7  of life for all New Yorkers.

          8                 I have read Intro. 226 very carefully

          9  and have found that the proposed amendment to the

         10  Administrative Code in relations to plating and

         11  decking during street openings nd excavations,

         12  although with some differences, already exists

         13  within the New York City Department of

         14  Transportation Highway Rules under Section 2-11 (e)

         15  (4ii), and the rule as it is currently written is

         16  broader then what is proposed by Intro. 226, and

         17  therefore, I believe it achieves the intent of the

         18  proposed amendment with no revisions necessary.

         19                 The company is concerned that even

         20  minor inconsistencies between the proposed amendment

         21  to the Administrative Code and the existing New York

         22  City Department of Transportation Highway Department

         23  Rules will result in confusion and discrepancies

         24  with enforcement within the agencies.

         25                 Therefore, we recommend that the
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          2  proposed amendment to the Administrative Code in

          3  relations to plating and decking, Intro. No. 226, be

          4  consist with the existing Department of

          5  Transportation Highway Department Rules.

          6                 With regard to Intro. 269, it also

          7  appears to be consistent with the existing

          8  Department of Transportation rules, and, therefore,

          9  we have no comment at this time.

         10                 In conclusion, we again thank this

         11  City Council and this Committee for the opportunity

         12  to present constructive input to in relation to both

         13  Intros.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         16                 Now we have some questions from

         17  Council Member Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I will be very

         19  brief.  Thank you.

         20                 You stated that the rules and

         21  regulations within the Department of Transportation

         22  satisfy the intent of what we are all talking about.

         23  Two questions.

         24                 It may achieve the intent but it does

         25  not reach the objective.  There are two distinct
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          2  differences. And the objective is to see that the

          3  violations do not continue, to see that they are

          4  rectified in a very short period of time.  So

          5  considering what you have said and probably, should

          6  there be better coordination between your company

          7  and the DOT so that the intent and the objective are

          8  reached simultaneously?

          9                 MR. IANNICO:  Maybe I will just

         10  respond first speaking Keyspan Energy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And the reason

         12  I say that, why the objective is not reached,

         13  because the violations continue and the fines

         14  continue. It is not to eliminate, not to eliminate

         15  but certainly to reduce enormously the imposition on

         16  the communities.  It is not a money raising thing so

         17  we, you know, like that clear so that we are not

         18  looking at these fines being increased and

         19  increased.  The objective is to reduce the fines and

         20  somehow it is not working.  So where do you identify

         21  why it is not working and what can be done to make

         22  it function better.

         23                 MR. IANNICO:  I guess let me respond,

         24  first speaking for Keyspan.  First, I would like to

         25  say we share in the issue.  We are concerned, we're

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  very concerned because inasmuch as the Department of

          3  Transportation in the City gets a complaint, we also

          4  get customer complaints that we are very very

          5  concerned about and we respond.

          6                 We do have a very cooperative

          7  relationship with the Department of Transportation

          8  presently.  We work with them very aggressively to

          9  minimize and reduce or eliminate the problem.  As

         10  you heard earlier testimony from the Department, we

         11  do respond immediately, whether they are unsafe

         12  conditions or noisy conditions.  I would like to be

         13  able to sit here and tell you that within the hour,

         14  in some cases we do.  Within the hour literally,

         15  respond to correct the situation when you know we

         16  are made aware of it, but it does happen.

         17                 We have also, and I do not want to

         18  speak for my peer here, Mr. Chin, but we have also

         19  over the years worked to eliminate the problem in

         20  terms of developing new technologies, okay?  And

         21  that's something I didn't hear earlier, and I would

         22  be happy to engage in that, but that, you heard some

         23  earlier testimony where increase in fines is not

         24  necessarily the answer, we cannot rely on that.  We

         25  certainly do not take it as a cost of doing
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          2  business, not in this financial environment in this

          3  City today.  We take it very seriously and we have

          4  expended countless hours, effort, money and energy

          5  trying to reduce our costs, as everyone else has in

          6  the City, and we all know what the situation is.

          7                 So technology is maybe one of the

          8  answers and maybe to go to your point as to why is

          9  it not working, and we have looked at that, we have

         10  looked at different materials for plates, for

         11  various size openings.  Obviously the anchoring

         12  method maybe we ought to look at, we can pursue that

         13  further than we have over the years.

         14                 Right now, as you heard testimony

         15  from Vincent Manescelko, they are pinned, all right?

         16  And given the amount, volume, and size of traffic in

         17  our City, in all the boroughs, not just Manhattan,

         18  but all the boroughs particularly, 18-wheel trucks,

         19  16-yard concrete trucks, it is the equivalent of a

         20  full size locomotive going over that plate.  I mean,

         21  you literally have to -- it has to be part of the

         22  roadway to keep it from moving, just a shear

         23  vibration that occurs.  You can imagine the forces

         24  that are acting on that plate, you know, with the

         25  movement that it is causing.
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          2                 So it is not an easy task, and as Mr.

          3  Chin was saying earlier, especially applying a flat

          4  plate over a curved surface.

          5                 So, there has to be other approaches.

          6  We are certainly looking at them, we have been

          7  looking at them, we are trying, there is no silver

          8  bullet yet, we are not going to give up, we are

          9  going to continue to try, but technology certainly

         10  has to be part of the answer.  You can fine anybody

         11  to death, it is not going to solve the problem.

         12                 So, I think in this case, and I

         13  honestly believe, sincerely believe, that technology

         14  has to be the answer here, because if we could do

         15  that, believe me, every one of them, the utilities,

         16  the contractors alike would certainly do it. We do

         17  not want to increase our customer complaints. It

         18  cost us money, that rework costs us more than the

         19  initial work to go back when we get that call, and

         20  we do go back, that rework is very, very costly and

         21  it is something that we do not want to do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I can believe

         23  that, and that is a good clarification for us.

         24                 One other question.  When you

         25  subcontract to do something and they are working,
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          2  for both companies, and when Community Boards have

          3  been called, and this is throughout the City, it is

          4  the subcontractor that has been responsible, and I

          5  can tell you it can be weeks and weeks for a

          6  subcontractor from Con Ed or ever, how do you deal

          7  with that?

          8                 MR. IANNICO:  I think you heard

          9  testimony again from Vincent Manescelko earlier, and

         10  he was right on the money with it.  We are the

         11  permit holders, we are responsible, we receive the

         12  phone calls, we respond.  It is our responsibility

         13  to either send our own internal forces there to

         14  resolve the problem to fix it and correct it, or to

         15  get our contractor to respond in the same time and

         16  manner that we would.  We control it, and we are

         17  responsible and held accountable for it by the

         18  Department of Transportation.  We are the ones

         19  getting the summonses when they are issued.  So I

         20  can tell you; and that is, we have off-hour crews, I

         21  think that there was point made earlier, we are

         22  there off hours as well to respond --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I see you all

         24  the time.

         25                 MR. IANNICO: -- To correct it.  So we
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          2  are there.

          3                 MR. CHIN:  Let me speak for what we

          4  do at Con Edison.  We do have off-hour crews similar

          5  to Keyspan and we will respond, but we also use a

          6  great deal of many contractors and they are

          7  ultimately responsible for the work there.  But we

          8  will not leave if a situation is unsafe.  If we get

          9  a call, even if it is contractor for excavation, we

         10  will send a crew out there to make it safe, and that

         11  may be involved just barricading off the area,

         12  keeping traffic off of it.  As you know, these

         13  plates are very heavy and you send a crew out there

         14  and all they have are a couple of bars and a couple

         15  of sledge hammers, you know, I could not move these

         16  plates around too much.  So we may just make the

         17  area safe and have our contractor come back and do

         18  more permanent repairs.

         19                 As far as the statement about being

         20  the cost of business, these violations, at Con

         21  Edison we do not take that attitude and I see it

         22  when we have our staff meeting and executives talk

         23  about the amount that we pay for violations and they

         24  go through the roof, and the point is well made to

         25  our operating people that violations are not
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          2  acceptable.  And not only from the financial point

          3  of view, the bottom line, but as a good corporate

          4  citizen that we do not want to get these phone calls

          5  and complaining about the way we work.  We just do

          6  not do business that way, and we will respond.

          7                 One of the things that we may do is,

          8  look at, is better ways of communicating to the

          9  public to file complaints directly to us.  We work

         10  very well with DOT.  When we get their calls, we

         11  will respond.  The public can call our 800 number

         12  directly, we will respond to those.

         13                 There are signs that DOT requires

         14  that we post at every excavation, has a phone

         15  number.  Call that phone number, that is the person

         16  who is responsible for that excavation, they will

         17  respond.

         18                 I think from a quality life

         19  standpoint that may be a quicker response, because

         20  as you pointed out, that this is a very tough

         21  situation to put a flat plate on a curved surface.

         22  We will wedge them, we will ramp them, we will pin

         23  them, and you get that first tractor tailor over it

         24  and then it starts to loosen and get that second one

         25  and it moves more and before you know it those
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          2  things are bouncing, so we'll go out and fix it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It would seem

          4  that a time frame is very critical when those

          5  complaints are filed, because I think everybody here

          6  understands that the City goes through a great deal,

          7  and certainly your companies, the cables move all

          8  time and we know that.  We are very much aware of

          9  the challenges that DOT and you have to face

         10  everyday.  What I think is a big problem is the time

         11  frame in which these violations are corrected,

         12  because there would not be need to follow up, for

         13  you to be on top of your subcontractors, and the

         14  summonses.

         15                 That appears to be one of the most

         16  critical issues, is the time, and not having to wait

         17  seven days or ten days, you get the complaints and

         18  certainly 51 Council members get the complaints and

         19  that is why it is a Citywide issue.  It is a big

         20  issue that I think you need to really address, not

         21  here, but I think you need to take that back to your

         22  roundtables.

         23                 MR. CHIN:  We respond quickly as

         24  possible as the manpower allows us.  On the night

         25  shift we have limited crews and if we have a big
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          2  emergency, of course, we are going to address to

          3  maintaining service.  We will address the problem as

          4  quickly as possible, but what caused the plate to

          5  shift in the first place does not change.  We may go

          6  out there, correct the problem, respike the plate,

          7  put more tedmack (phonetic) down, put more wedges in

          8  there and the trucks keep coming over it and the

          9  next day we have the same problem.

         10                 As we mentioned in our testimony,

         11  aside from just barricading the whole excavation and

         12  keeping traffic off, it is an ongoing maintenance

         13  problem.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That is a very

         15  difficult thing to do.  I am amazed that traffic

         16  flows the way it does with all that we are

         17  experiencing in construction.

         18                 MR. IANNICCO:  I just wanted to add

         19  to that we do have a time requirement.  Currently

         20  working with DOT, as you heard earlier testimony,

         21  when we get that phone call, particularly for unsafe

         22  condition, they are standing by, they will give us a

         23  time requirement.  They will tell us we expect you

         24  here within the hour or you will get another

         25  summons.  And again, particularly when it is unsafe
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          2  condition, it can be Traffic Agents, Police

          3  Department in uniform or DOT Inspectors standing by

          4  to protect that site. Whether that is an unsafe

          5  condition, even on a noisy plate they will call us

          6  and tell us to get out there within the hour or

          7  within the hour and a half or the half hour, for

          8  that matter, at times.

          9                 So they do, I do not want you to

         10  believe that we do not, that the Department of

         11  Transportation does not, they do try to impose, as

         12  best as we all can, an hour restriction.  There is a

         13  time restriction on them all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         15  Member Sears.  And questions from Council Member

         16  Gerson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  You know, Mr. Chair, if only reality

         19  matched testimony, we would be a lot quieter City,

         20  we would not have to be here this long.

         21                 Let me first say that I appreciate

         22  both of the testimony which you both have delivered.

         23  I know, and just from my experience a little bit

         24  more familiar with Con Ed, but I am somewhat

         25  familiar with Keyspan, I know that both of your
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          2  utilities, as well as DOT, are capable of doing and

          3  accomplishing heroic feats, literally.  I have seen

          4  this in Lower Manhattan, that is the District I

          5  represent.

          6                 In what my frustration is about and

          7  what this bill is trying to accomplish is to get

          8  that same level of immediacy, of exigency, of

          9  responsiveness, of heroic feats, if you will, to

         10  this issue of the noisy metal plate, which I think

         11  kind of tends to get, from my experience, short

         12  shift, that maybe you do not consider, or DOT or

         13  other utilities don't consider it as a "unsafe

         14  condition", except to my most recent complaint into

         15  the senior who is literally sick and made sicker by

         16  the constant infliction of this horrendous noise, he

         17  had a heart and pressure condition, it was a safety

         18  issue.  This is a very, very serious issue and

         19  rectifying it will not only improve the quality of

         20  life, it will enhance safety to the individual.  And

         21  I am disheartened to hear people say, well, the

         22  problem is, you know, when it is fixed, and then

         23  along comes the next trailer, or the bus, it becomes

         24  unfixed.

         25                 In my experience, without exception,
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          2  you know, I can spend all my time dealing with metal

          3  plates, but I cannot do that, but when I do focus on

          4  a particular metal plate, and we finally do get it

          5  fixed, it is fixed.  We do not have the problem that

          6  an hour or two later becomes unfixed, it is only

          7  turned out to be the case that upon proper

          8  installation, and I am sure there is one, two, or

          9  three percent of the time when you know you have

         10  exceptional circumstances, but in my experience,

         11  when a plate has been properly installed, it has

         12  been fine for days.

         13                 So, that is a preference, just like a

         14  couple of very brief questions. And Mr. Iannicco, I

         15  misread it.  I welcome your comment about

         16  technology, and I would welcome any follow-up that

         17  you could deliver to my office, I'm sure to the

         18  Chair of this Committee and to all of us on ideas

         19  and how we in government can spearhead and push the

         20  development of an application of the best possible

         21  technology in this respect.

         22                 I fear that too often in our City our

         23  public policy does not demand the most up-to-date

         24  state of technology.  We do not use technology

         25  adequately to address public policy concerns.  So I
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          2  really welcome that comment, and I would look

          3  forward to any follow-up, and you know, maybe the

          4  point about using best efforts to minimize noise or

          5  whatever language we come up with can be used to

          6  promote and to require best available technology,

          7  and best available technology is something that is a

          8  common phrase throughout regulatory schemes.

          9                 So, I truly welcome that, and I

         10  invite you to follow up on that, and do either of

         11  you have any further comments at this point on what

         12  type of better technology is available now or might

         13  be available in the very near future?

         14                 MR. IANNICCO: I wish I could answer

         15  that now but it is certainly something that we need

         16  to explore further. As I mentioned earlier, we are

         17  always, we are constantly looking.  You have to, if

         18  for no other reason, to improve the quality of life

         19  to reduce costs.  This is something that we have

         20  looked at, different materials for plates, as well

         21  as the different anchoring systems.  So we need to

         22  look at that, we need to really focus in on it, and

         23  I think we can work together cooperatively, all of

         24  us along with the Department of Transportation to

         25  see what is available out there, you know what is
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          2  the latest available technology and what is cost

          3  effective.

          4                 Again, I have to say it that way, the

          5  cost effectiveness is always an objective.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Absolutely.

          7                 MR. IANNICCO: It is something, again,

          8  I wish I could give you more specific answer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, that's

         10  fine.

         11                 MR. IANNICCO: But there are some

         12  technologies out there that might be worth further

         13  review.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chin?

         15                 MR. CHIN: We would be more than happy

         16  to join with the City and Keyspan to look at new

         17  technologies.  I think we are on the forefront of a

         18  lot of research and development and we would be more

         19  than happy, in fact, we have partnered in some of

         20  our past efforts and we will be more than willing to

         21  do that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, then, I

         23  will look forward to continue that and think also of

         24  any ways in which government through either demand,

         25  or I hate to use or the bring up the idea, but tax
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          2  credits or other incentives or other ways, can

          3  promote best, the exploration and adoption of the

          4  best possible technology for this.

          5                 My last question, and I heard your

          6  point, and the DOT's points, about the fines and

          7  after the fact, and that is precisely why we were

          8  trying to focus on a system before the fact to

          9  prevent the necessity of the weighing of fines.

         10                 So I guess, two parts of the

         11  question, one is -- well, one question.  What is

         12  wrong with the system that demands some kind of

         13  accountability?  That demands that there be some,

         14  you know, not burden but some basic check off

         15  process to assure before the crews leave the site,

         16  someone certifies that it is done right.  What could

         17  be wrong with asking of that?

         18                 MR. IANNICCO:  If I may?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And we will

         20  do it in the way that you suggest.  Tell us how to

         21  do it.

         22                 MR. IANNICCO:  I do not know that

         23  there is anything wrong in it, that is why I

         24  mentioned technology.  You know, there is an

         25  underlying premise here that it is not being done,
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          2  or not being done properly.  And we overlooked the

          3  fact that maybe there is a root cause for the

          4  problem and it is not the question of not following

          5  procedures or not doing it, because we certainly do

          6  not want to get summonses.  I am not saying that the

          7  world is perfect by any stretch of the imagination,

          8  but maybe what we have over looked is that part of

          9  the problem is that the current system is inadequate

         10  for the streets today to the current anchoring

         11  system. You know, to hold it down, given the volume

         12  and size of traffic that we have.

         13                 When you take a ten-foot long steel

         14  plate, and you can imagine the flexibility it has,

         15  and you put an 18-wheeler truck over it or a 16-yard

         16  dump, concrete truck over it, can you imagine the

         17  flexibility, the flexing that occurs because of the

         18  point load on that?  And the force coming back, you

         19  can anchor that with a two foot pin into the earth

         20  and it will bounce it out.  And I do not know if

         21  that would happen with a pin that big, but you can

         22  imagine what is happening, the dynamics of what is

         23  occurring there.  So, that is why I suggested it,

         24  we, for one, are doing I am saying, we do not want

         25  to get summonses, we certainly do not want customer
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          2  complaints, we certainly do not want to do rework,

          3  which is very costly, and we certainly do not want

          4  to, we spend a lot of time and money and effort to

          5  work with the City properly to improve the quality

          6  of life in this City, we certainly do not want to do

          7  any of that, but we need to look at ways to improve

          8  the process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I am with

         10  you, you sold me on that 100 percent.  But I just,

         11  and Mr. Chin, I want to hear your answer on that,

         12  but I am just asking why we cannot do both?  Why is

         13  it either or?

         14                 And I did not mean to imply that

         15  there is any maliciousness, or that it is more often

         16  than not not done.  Let us say 90 percent of the

         17  time it is done properly, and by your two companies

         18  it is 100 percent of the time, it is the other

         19  son-of-a-guns who ten percent of the time do not do

         20  it right.  But if we can get at that ten percent, as

         21  my colleague, Council Member Sears said, they are

         22  placed throughout the City galore and in my district

         23  with all the reconstruction that is going to happen

         24  over the next years, it is going to proliferate.  So

         25  even if we get a ten percent through some kind of
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          2  insistence on internal accountability, that will

          3  make a big difference to the people of the City.

          4                 MR. CHIN: Councilman Gerson, we have

          5  no problem with accountability.  We as a

          6  corporation, Con Edison, we are the permit holder,

          7  we would take responsibility for excavations.

          8                 What we wanted to bring up, the point

          9  was that by having an individual certify, that you

         10  put on that individual certain liabilities that

         11  maybe that was not intended or maybe an individual

         12  should not have.  You know, when we send a crew

         13  leader out there to do excavation, and it is a

         14  plate, his job is to do that excavation, repair our

         15  service correctly, and do it in a safe way in

         16  compliance with regulation.  But to have that

         17  individual certify, that places kind of an onerous

         18  liability on him, that I do not think this Council

         19  intended for just a worker.  We as a corporation, we

         20  are out there, we are the permit holder, we are

         21  responsible, no doubt about that, but the individual

         22  worker we think that was not intended to put that

         23  person in jeopardy.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That was not

         25  the intent, and I appreciate it.
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          2                 And we could certainly, Mr. Chair, go

          3  back to the language and clarify it, and I

          4  appreciate that constructive input. But it is the

          5  intent to have some kind of a mechanism sign-off

          6  procedure without putting an unfair burden.  I mean,

          7  just as I presume in other safety measures, you have

          8  an elevator inspector who when he fixes an elevator

          9  has to certify as a proper sign-off, you even have

         10  the initials on the old elevator inspection

         11  certificates in the building that it was completed

         12  and that is was done.  It is just a check and

         13  balance and to make sure, so we are going to save

         14  you guys fines and complaints. But certainly we can

         15  look at the language and adjust it to take account

         16  of your point.

         17                 Mr. Chin, how many hours after a

         18  complaint can you commit that Con Ed will see to it

         19  that a noisy metal plate is corrected?

         20                 MR. CHIN:  I do not know what the

         21  average is.  It depends on our workload that night.

         22  Say on the off hours we have certain crews on duty

         23  and it is usually our gas operation crews that will

         24  go and address these things, and if they are not

         25  busy, we will generally take it through our computer
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          2  system and they will go to the workout location and

          3  they should respond within a matter of a couple of

          4  hours, but if we have an emergency that night we may

          5  not be able to get it at all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Because I

          7  will tell you, I think that Helen Sears is right on

          8  the mark, as she usually is, the timing is the

          9  element.  I can tell you from my experience with Con

         10  Ed, I have been told that, well, because it was a

         11  subcontractor who has to do the fixing, and you

         12  might not be able to get to the subcontractor

         13  because it is after business hours, that my people

         14  might have to go through a whole night and then it

         15  drags on.  So maybe we need to look at a system that

         16  afixes a time response.

         17                 MR. CHIN:  We will have a company

         18  crew go out and look at it, even if it is a

         19  contractor, work on it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.

         21                 Did I interrupt you Mr --

         22                 MR. IANNICCO:  No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.

         24                 Thank you, Mr Chair, very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Gerson, and thank you, gentlemen, for

          3  providing us with your testimony today.

          4                 MR. CHIN:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Next person to

          6  speak is Eugene Kelty, the Chairman of the Queens

          7  Community Board 7, and a distinguished Chief of a

          8  Fire Department.

          9                 Good morning, Gene.

         10                 MR. KELTY:  Good morning, Mr. Chair,

         11  and members of the Council.  My name is Gene Kelty,

         12  I am Chairman of Community Board 7 in Queens.

         13                 Community Board 7 is one of the

         14  largest boards of the 59 in the City of New York,

         15  and I am talking about Intro. 586.  I am sorry, I

         16  should have been clear.

         17                 The area that we cover, that the

         18  Board covers, is Bay Terrace, College Point,

         19  Beachhurst, Malba, Queens Borough Hill, Whitestone

         20  and Northeast Flushing.

         21                 The legislation before the Council

         22  deals with the area of Flushing, specifically Main

         23  Street.

         24                 Main Street and Roosevelt Avenue

         25  happens to be one of the largest transportation hubs
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          2  in the City of New York.  At this location you have

          3  23 bus lines, the eighth largest subway station, and

          4  a Long Island Railroad Station.  It is also one of

          5  the largest retail districts in the City with a

          6  block away being a super police district. To say the

          7  least, the people and vehicles are moving constantly

          8  at this location.

          9                 For as far back as 1989, Community

         10  Board No. 7, has been dealing with he overcrowding

         11  on Main Street and Roosevelt Avenue.  Since the

         12  current legislation is for Main Street, I will keep

         13  my remarks to this location only.

         14            Community Board No. 7 used to conduct

         15  three to four multi-agency task force operations for

         16  Consumer Affair problems in the downtown Flushing

         17  area.

         18                 The Department of Consumer Affairs,

         19  Department of Health, 109 Precinct's Quality of Life

         20  Unit, Parks Department, Sanitation, and the member

         21  of Community Board No. 7 would take three days for

         22  their sweeps, usually Thursday, Friday, and

         23  Saturday.

         24                 The sweeps were done to take back the

         25  area. Consumer Affairs and 109 Precincts would
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          2  summons and/or confiscate items that were being

          3  displayed illegally, and in some cases the

          4  merchandise was taken from street peddlers while in

          5  other cases it was the stoop lot stands that were

          6  extending past their permits, had no permits, or

          7  operated beyond the scope of the permits.  If you

          8  look at attachment number one, that is the Daily

          9  News article, I highlighted the area, and you will

         10  see that the 109 Precinct was loading up watermelons

         11  into the truck.

         12                 The article says that the raid began

         13  at Queens Farm at 4201 Main Street where cops took

         14  245 watermelons, were being stored on the sidewalk

         15  blocking pedestrians way.

         16                  "This happens all the time" said

         17  Flushing resident Jeff Lyons, as he watched the

         18  raid, "this store is not the only one found."

         19                 There were various other locations

         20  that over the course of many years that Community

         21  Board 7 has been identifying and trying to get into

         22  compliance.  I listed four of them that were just on

         23  this area, Blue Star, Red Apple, Garden Farms, and

         24  Green Farms.

         25                 The abuse was so bad that I made up a
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          2  head sheet with various categories and every so

          3  often go down to survey the community area and see

          4  what was happening in the downtown Flushing area,

          5  that is Item No. 2, attachment No. 2.  You will see

          6  I put the basic stuff, I put a store's name in and

          7  an address, I had four-foot limits using milk

          8  crates, unlicensed display, et cetera.

          9                 I have attached several old newspaper

         10  articles that address the problems with the sidewalk

         11  congestion.  Those articles, attachments three and

         12  four, from the Queens Tribune and the other one was

         13  from the New York News Day.  I also highlighted

         14  those areas in green that I thought might be to your

         15  attention.

         16                 In attachment three, if you look at

         17  the right-hand corner, that one, it says, "Along the

         18  way, the task force" -- by the way, Council Member

         19  Sears, this is your area, Jackson Heights, it says

         20   "the task force dismantled a display of bicycles,

         21  tricycles and scooters that were being strung across

         22  street signs and telephone poles by a vendor".

         23                 A produce vendor was hit with two

         24  consecutive days where his merchandise was

         25  confiscated and summons.
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          2                 The legislation, these articles may

          3  be old, but the problem is still the same and

          4  compounded by the ever-increasing number of

          5  pedestrians and sidewalk, new sidewalk store owners.

          6                 The legislation before us now is a

          7  good step in the right direction. The Board does

          8  understand that by limiting the sidewalk to the

          9  businesses that some revenue may be lost.  However,

         10  all the merchants are now on the same even playing

         11  field, and that the end result will be that the

         12  sidewalks will not have any impediments and that

         13  pedestrians won't have the ability to circumnavigate

         14  around the obstacles.

         15                 Community Board No. 7 respectfully

         16  requests that the legislation be passed and

         17  wholeheartedly supports it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Chairman

         19  Kelty, for taking the time out to come down to

         20  testify at City Hall.

         21                 A question from Council Member Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         23                 It is good to see you again, Gene.

         24                 MR. KELTY: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And your
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          2  testimony is very key, so it is not just limited

          3  to one community, it is really spread throughout.

          4                 I am going to see how it can be

          5  expanded so that there is a lot more strength added

          6  to that.

          7                 Particularly one of the things, and

          8  it must happen in Flushing, because it happens

          9  certainly, I have seen it in Manhattan and other

         10  areas, as well as mine, that also a great deal of

         11  watering goes on, on these sidewalk obstacles,

         12  whatever they be, plants or anything else.

         13                 MR. KELTY: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And at a time

         15  when we are talking about West Nile Virus and a lot

         16  of other stuff, we end up with little pools of still

         17  water and they are never cleaned.

         18                 MR. KELTY: Yes, that's correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, I think

         20  that the bill has to be looked at as also a health

         21  measure, as well as well as it is a safety measure

         22  and the space that is done.

         23                 So, Mr. Chair, I think that we might

         24  have to look at that, because I step in more water

         25  in any borough, and it is not swept away and you've
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          2  got these little idle pools, and if the Department

          3  of Health were to come, they would get some really

          4  strong violations, cause I have walked with them

          5  through the district.  And that is the part that I

          6  think we have to look at.

          7                 MR. KELTY:  I would hate to hold up

          8  the bill for that, but it is not a bad thing to go

          9  along, but --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         11  that we are not voting today.

         12                 MR. KELTY:  Okay.  But I will tell

         13  you that I know that the Department of

         14  Transportation, because Councilman Liu had the map,

         15  has tried a new initiative with a scoring along the

         16  sidewalk area by the curb line and trying to get so

         17  that we do not build up any impediments of water

         18  along that area and it will be moving along towards

         19  the thing.

         20                 So they already have a pilot program,

         21  I think the Commissioner Iris Weintrab was out

         22  there, we did a press release with the Councilman,

         23  and it seems to be working down on one corner,

         24  specifically 48th Road and Main Street, which is

         25  where we had a terrible problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

          3                 MR. KELTY:  So if that is

          4  incorporated in, that might help the health problem,

          5  as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          8  Member Sears. And, yes, several of our colleagues

          9  are also looking at the same kinds of legislation

         10  that would place the same restrictions or

         11  prohibitions on the sale or display of sidewalk

         12  material in their districts, as well.

         13                 Thank you, Chairman Kelty, for

         14  joining us today.

         15                 And next we have Michael Demma, who

         16  is speaking on Intro. 60, and following Michael

         17  Demma, we will have Howard Dunn and Vito Colucci

         18  speaking on the proposed bill concerning the

         19  placement of sidewalk flagpoles, concerning the

         20  placement of flagpoles on sidewalks. It is not a

         21  part of the official agenda, but nonetheless, we

         22  will hear your important comments about the issue.

         23                 Michael, go ahead.

         24                 MR DEMMA:  My name is Michael Demma,

         25  D-e-m-m-a.  I live in Lower Manhattan here and I
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          2  work with the Transit Authority, but I do not

          3  represent them in this matter, so.

          4                 My concern with the Intro. 60 is the

          5  parking 15 feet off the curb lines and street

          6  corners.  It is unfortunate that we cannot have that

          7  type of program throughout the whole City because of

          8  parking with one neighborhood they need the parking

          9  positions and all that.  But I am looking at it as a

         10  people's point of it, the pedestrians here in the

         11  City particularly.  So, there are many curbs and

         12  crosswalks where the car is allowed, even the

         13  smaller cars, other than SUV are right on top of a

         14  crosswalk.  So, it seems that folks are crowded with

         15  these type of cars that are just right on top, and,

         16  unfortunately, between DOT representatives and City

         17  Council here who wants parking and who wants all

         18  their way, it is a difficult choice here.

         19                 I do not know how you folks do it

         20  every day in trying to make decisions, but I believe

         21  some parking on top of the crosswalks should be

         22  almost mandatory, and made the exception thereafter.

         23                 There is catchbasins at each

         24  individual corner, I believe they should be clear

         25  access for cleaning at will.  I took some pictures
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          2  here, so maybe it could be helpful.  Also, passing

          3  vehicles, it is individual intersections are left up

          4  to, if it is determined that it is too crowded at a

          5  particular intersection, but being in the City, here

          6  in Manhattan, there are quite a number of them that

          7  allow this parking and taxi cab drivers have to

          8  double park in order to let their passengers out and

          9  people with children and things of that nature,

         10  turning buses, things like that.

         11                 So, maybe what I have in front of me

         12  could be helpful to make decisions in the future. I

         13  had done some community work on 14th Street and

         14  Sixth Avenue, I knew it was essential that some

         15  parking meters were removed in order to let the

         16  sanitation sweepers to get in throughout the day at

         17  will, and just for turning vehicles.  So the

         18  pictures speak for themselves.

         19                 And let us see what else?  Vans.  I

         20  put a van right here, as well.  And right outside

         21  City Hall and Broadway up on Murray Street there is

         22  a regular passenger vehicle, it is right on the

         23  cross walk, and the car does not seem to care about

         24  the people just walking across.  I mean, it would be

         25  nice if there was a little more room at each
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          2  intersection.

          3                 I have another photo here of Hudson

          4  Street and Duane where a normal size car is right on

          5  the crosswalk, and there is a turning truck

          6  available and he is having difficulty turning, so

          7  maybe that could be helpful, as well.

          8                 Also, we have the vendors that favor

          9  the cars on the corner because it gives them a

         10  little shelter from the cold, the noise and

         11  whatever.  So if there was not a car there, they may

         12  not want to stay on the corners in the fashion that

         13  they do, okay?  And that is about it.  I just hope

         14  this would be helpful for any information.

         15                 Now, as far as these plates go, if I

         16  was the supervisor in charge, those things would be

         17  nailed down, period. I mean, not this, there is no

         18  reason for them to bounce.  I am a tradesman and

         19  they can easily be bolted down with the proper

         20  bolts. I have never heard of such silliness that

         21  goes on here with that, okay?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Michael.

         23                 MR. DEMMA:  You are quite welcome.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our next panel will

         25  be Howard Dunn and Vito Colucci.  Gentlemen.
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          2                 MR. DUNN:  Thank you, Chairman Liu,

          3  for allowing me to say a few words.

          4                 Unfortunate, we were prepared two

          5  weeks ago for this hearing, it was cancelled, we

          6  were advised that it was on for today, 279, now we

          7  are informed that it has been cancelled.

          8                 Now, I had a business personnel, Mr.

          9  Vito Colucci, who is a gentleman that received

         10  summonses a year and a half ago. He took time out

         11  from his business today, spent four/five hours

         12  coming here and going home and was not heard. So, I

         13  will speak on behalf of him that it is unfortunate

         14  we are getting, and I will be brunt, a run around.

         15  This has been going on for at least a year and a

         16  half, I have contacted you and other people that

         17  have sponsored our Flag Program and now we are not

         18  being able to be speak about it. I brought in an

         19  example of the flag cut in half just to show the

         20  people what it was all about.

         21                 I will bring it in again, if I have

         22  to, but we would like to move it.  It is imperative.

         23  Our American people, our citizens and our people

         24  that are serving overseas, our service people, they

         25  respect that flag, they are fighting for it, and
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          2  that is what we are doing as veterans, fighting for

          3  the flag to be on the avenues, merchants are paying

          4  for it, a small nominal fee, plus residents. Now

          5  they cannot put it out because of this stupid

          6  amendment and that DOT personnel that gave these

          7  summonses out in Brighten Beach (sic) area.  We are

          8  here to fight against it and try to get a better

          9  resolution which has been written up to speak about

         10  it.  And that is what we would like to do and get it

         11  fast, because Fifth Avenue and Bay Ridge from 65th

         12  Street out to Verrazano Bridge, their street is

         13  going to be completely finished by November the 15th

         14  and they are very interested on getting these flags

         15  back on their Avenue again, and we held off to make

         16  sure we go by the guidelines of the DOT.  We know

         17  what the regulations are.  We have been doing that

         18  all along, keeping them lined up with the parking

         19  meters or anything so as not within or beyond their

         20  capability of being recognized and a safety way of

         21  mounting them, for the safety of our community.  But

         22  let us keep in mind, our men and women are over

         23  there fighting for our country and this is a damn

         24  time since 9/11 to keep that flag off the Avenues.

         25                 Channel 2 had a program for the past
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          2  three days on television, going around the whole

          3  community asking the merchants or residential, why

          4  do you have an old flag out there?  Why not replace

          5  it?  Some gave them a hard time, Lou Young -- Greg

          6  Young, I am sorry, and he had been getting good

          7  response and he had a bad response from these

          8  people.  And he is getting good results and I hate

          9  to say it, but if I have to bring down veterans

         10  organizations and the newspapers, I will do it.  I

         11  spoke to Ralph Penza today, he is aware of it,

         12  Channel 2, I will be right in touch with them,

         13  because I feel that we are getting a run around.  I

         14  think I have said enough.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, sir.

         17  And we certainly do not want any unnecessary

         18  restrictions against people being able to place flag

         19  poles with the American flag on our sidewalks.

         20                 The DOT does have some, what I

         21  consider legitimate concerns about the bill, and

         22  that is why we are continuing to work with them to

         23  put together a bill that allows people, particularly

         24  our veterans, to be able to proudly display flags

         25  and at the same time allow DOT to keep the sidewalks
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          2  safe, as well.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 MR. DUNN:  As of today we have 117

          5  personnel, military personnel, killed after our war,

          6  which is supposed to be over, 117. How many more

          7  will be over there?  I sent many flags over to those

          8  veterans, I mean the people in the service,

          9  requesting a flag.  We took it on ourselves, spent

         10  the money, and was very glad that our soldiers were

         11  up there fighting and they wanted to display this

         12  flag, not for our country but for everybody.

         13  Freedom of Speech.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, very

         16  much, sir.  And thank you all for coming down

         17  today.  I apologize for the mix up on the

         18  scheduling.

         19                 MR. DUNN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There be no other

         21  testimony, this meeting, this hearing of the City

         22  Council's Committee on Transportation is adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:20 p.m.)
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